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ALUMNAE THEATRE COMPANY
Annual General Meeting Agenda
June

th
8

2014 2:00 p.m.

Hart House
7 Hart House Circle, Toronto, ON
1.

Call to Order

2.

President’s Welcome & Report

3.

Review and Approval of Minutes of AGM

4.

Report of the Treasurer
a.

—

—

Barbara Larose
—

June 9, 2013

Acting Treasurer: Shelley Cahill

List of Reports Submitted
Production Report for The Underpants
•
Production Report for Fire Works
•
Production Report for The Ladys Not For Burning
•
Production Report for New Ideas Festival 2015
•
Production Report for Rabbit Hole
Production Summary
•
Board of Management Report 2013
•
Board of Management Statement
ATC Income Statement July 1, 2013 May 31 2014
ATC Financial Statement—July 1,2013—May 31, 2014
•
Executed Audited Financial Statement 2012
Draft Audited Financial Statement 2013
—

—

—

—

Motion: ‘That the Treasurer’s Reports be accepted as read.”
Moved by Shelley Cahill, Seconded by Barbara Larose
“That Connell Hall LLP be appointed auditor for the 2013-2014 season
Motion:
and that the Board be authorized to set their remuneration.”
Moved by Shelley Cahill, Seconded by Barbara Larose
5.

Re-Commitment to Alumnae Theatre Company Mandate:
“The Alumnae Theatre Company is dedicated to the production of
adventurous, high-quality theatre not readily seen elsewhere, and to the
promotion and skill development of women in theatre.”
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6.

Introduction of Board of Directors and Summary of Reports Barbara Larose
a. Summary of attached reports:
Report of the VP Membership
Report of the Archivist
Report of the Catering Committee
Report of the VP Executive Producer
Report of the Program Committee
Report of the New Ideas Festival 2014
Report of the Subscriptions Manager
Report of the VP Theatre Manager
Report of the Rentals Managers
Report of the Director, Training and Development
Report of the Director, Audience Development
Report of the New Play Development Group
Report of FireWorks 2013
b. Reading of Properties Report, Razie Brownstone
c. Questions

7.

Special Thanks. and Awards
a. Volunteer Shout Out
b. Life Memberships

8.

Focus Groups
a. Description of Process

—

b. Topics: Volunteering; Training; Marketing; Internal
Communications
c. Questions for each topic:
i. What is working?
ii. What needs to be changed/improved?
iii. What are your top 3 Suggestions and how could

they be implemented?
9.

Report of the Nominating Committee
a. Presentation of Report

—

Barbara Larose

b. Request for Nominations from the Floor for Board positions
c. Motion to close Nominations
d. Election/Approval of Board of Directors

e. Request for Nominations from the floor for Department Head positions
f.
g.

Motion to close Nominations
Elections/Approval of Department Heads

10.

Next Season —Volunteer Opportunities

II.

What we are up to during the summer

12.

Other Business

13.

Adjournment
Cocktails, Dinner and Entertainment to follow!!
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President’s Welcome and Report
Alumnae Theatre Company

—

Annual General Meeting

June 8, 2014
Welcome Alumnae Theatre Company Members!
This has been another great Season at the Alumnae Theatre! It’s been a year of high
quality productions, of meeting challenges and of change. We ushered in our new play
series, Fire Works in November. And, despite growing pains, Fire Works had a very
successful launch, both in helping us to achieve our mandate and in turning a profit of
more than 20% over expenditures something that is almost unheard of for a first time
event of its type!
—

The renewed energy we experienced last season continued and the Board of Directors
was incredibly active, despite several vacancies, which kept us all very busy. We have
once again come together to plan for our future, while at the same time honouring our
history.
In addition to the great pride we should all have in the quality of the productions we
presented to the public this Season, every single production made a profit this year! You
will hear more detail about this in the financial and individual show reports later. But
right now I just want to offer kudos to all the production teams involved in our Season for
keeping expenses low and enabling this success!
We kicked off our Season with retrospective production of The Underpants, using the
Steve Martin adaptation of Carl Sternheim’s early
century work, directed by Ginette
Mohr and produced by Jennifer McKinley. MooneyonTheatre called it ‘hilarious” and “an
excellent production”. It had so much style and was a delight to watch!
Next up was FireWorks, with three full length plays, a series of Roundtables, and a
Playwrights Speak event. Two of the shows were written by our own Members and work
shopped through our New Play Development group: Measure of the World by Shirley
Barrie, directed by Molly Thom and Gloria’s Guy by Joan Burrows, directed by Anne
Harper and one of the plays had been developed through NIF, Theorj by Norman
Yeung, directed by Joanne Williams. I saw all three of the shows and was so happy to
see these pieces reach such a pivotal point in their development it makes me proud
that my company is contributing to new work in that way!
—

The third production of our Season in January was The Lady’s Not for Burning, by
Christopher Fry, directed by Jane Carnwath and produced by Ellen Green and Barbara
Larose. The piece was a delight to work on since the language was so rich and the cast
so talented! The prestigious Charlebois Post-Canada praised “such a strong cast” and
declared the play “well worth seeing”.
In March we produced the successful and wildly creative New Ideas Festival 2014,
featuring 15 short plays in the three week festival. NIF was produced by the dedicated

team of: Carolyn Zapf, Pat McCarthy, Jennifer McKinley, and June Rogers. NIF
continues to draw young people to our theatre to work on the pieces. Audiences of a
wide range of ages and backgrounds make NIF a destination priority theatrical event in
their viewing season. I enjoyed every week of the festival this year and always look
forward to what NIF will present next year!
We wrapped up the regular production season, with Rabbit Hole, by David Lindsay
Abaire, directed by Paul Hardy and produced by Brenda Darling and her Co-Producers,
Sandra Burley and Francine Dick. Reviewers called this production ‘funny, moving and
profound”... “really good stuff... firing on all cylinders”
“don’t miss this”....:
I so enjoyed opening night and the deft way the director and cast balanced the pathos
and humour. And production values looked really expensive especially given that I
know they came in substantially under budget and had a full kitchen set up on stage!
—

You might think that this is quite the production Season by itself, but there’s more.
We ramped up and expanded both the Write Now Playwriting event in the fall and our
play reading series “Big Ideas” in May. Both events, organized by our New Play
Development group were very well attended and showed the depth of talent in our
company! NPD continues to be vibrant and busy throughout the year!
We’ve been doing a lot of listening, planning and re-building this Season.
Our membership was down 11% this Season, after two consecutive seasons of growth,
but we have also learned from our Membership survey and other research that
approximately 60% of our membership are actively participating in the life of our
company and taking on roles and tasks on an ongoing basis. This is a much larger
percentage than we had anticipated and means the level of commitment to this
organization is high.
At the end of last Season our long time Website Goddess and Graphic Designer,
Suzanne Courtney, retired from her position and our e-newsletter editor also was unable
to continue her work during the Season. This put the brakes on some of our
Membership initiatives in the areas of communications and delayed the launch of our
“Members Only” portion of the web site.
Instead we spent this Season re-building our basic website on a new platform and
developing a new plan to expand the existing site. This process is ongoing but we feel
confident that we will be able to launch the new site with all its bells and whistles this
coming Season.
We have been looking at the results or our membership survey of 2013 and have held a
Special Board Meeting to come up with a new plan and a time line for implementation
that will see progress on important membership initiatives in the internal
communications, volunteer appreciation, and training areas this coming Season. Part of
these new initiatives includes involving the membership in determining the specifics of
our action plan and today’s focus group consultations will be a first step in that direction.
Our online ticketing option to purchase tickets to our productions continues to be
successful and now forms a regular part of our process. We added the option to
purchase Subscriptions online and made our Subscription Series more flexible. We
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heard from Subscribers that many who don’t renew their subscriptions cite unavailability
for all the shows as their main concern. Consequently, we responded with a flex pass
system that will virtually eliminate that problem, allowing subscribers to use their set
number of tickets for many people to attend a single show or spread out over the
Season as their schedule permits. We hope this will help to kick start an increase in
Subscribers, as part of our ongoing efforts to increase our Audience Base. Today’s
focus group activities will also include the topic of Marketing to get your ideas and
suggestions on how to get the word out that the Alumnae Theatre Company is here, is
vibrant and it’s productions shouldn’t be missed!
Open Stage, our grass roots performance-based initiative continued this Season,
providing a safe ongoing environment for performance, for learning and for
experimentation; and an exciting outlet for many of our Members!
Rentals were still successful this Season, although rental income was down significantly
from last season and expenses in this area have been higher due primarily to the
unavailability of our space through the usually lucrative summer rental months. We
depend on rental income flowing in to our theatre to help cover our Building Operations
and Maintenance expenses and will continue to monitor the situation. Although we do
expect more of the same next Season due to Phase 2 of the City’s Accessibility
Renovations.
Phase 2 of the Accessibility renovations planned by the City will lower the upper lobby to
allow all persons to have front door access to the building directly from the street level
th
and will commence on June 18
and go through until Labour Day. We will not have
access to the lobbies over this period and will lose access to the main stage as well for
at least part of the time. This second stage is problematic for us as it changes the way
we use the building and results in the demolition of design elements of the 1972 Ron
Thom renovations which form part of the heritage of our theatre. Negotiations on this
have been ongoing throughout the year as we struggle together to meet the City’s
mandate while attempting to preserve the character and design of the building we love.
We’ve started and accomplished a tremendous amount this year and should be very
proud of the hard work we have all put in to make this Season so successful!
Congratulations to all of you and to all of our wonderful directors, producers, NIF Artistic
Producers, our designers, stage management teams, casts, crews, and administrative
teams who made the 201 3/2014 Season such a great one at the Alumnae Theatre!
And to all of you who have participated during the past year and who, I hope, will
continue your support of this fabulous theatre, my heartfelt gratitude.
I look forward to our exciting upcoming Season.
It’s all Canadian and decidedly woman focussed and includes a main stage production in
the spring of I am Marguerite, written by Alumnae Theatre Company member, Shirley
Barrie and directed by Molly Thom. We have been fortunate to obtain the services of
Andrea Wasserman (of Hart House) to direct our first main stage production of George
F. Walker’s Escape from Happiness in September, and I am delighted to be directing our
retrospective choice for this Season, Blood Relations, by Sharon Pollock in January.
Fireworks will be giving us two new full length member written plays in November
—

C
Burying Toni by Cate Frid and You Have to Earn It by Ramona Baillie and Maria Popoff.
New Ideas Festival has already sent out its call for submissions of plays and I can’t wait
to see what excitement they will bring us in 2015.
I anticipate an exciting year ahead as we look forward with renewed commitment and
justifiable pride in our past accomplishments, ready to face any challenges that come
our way. And while we are making great theatre, let’s remember that we are all valuable
and needed in the process and let’s not forget to show each other our sincere respect
and appreciation.
Respectfully submitted,
Barbara Larose, President, Alumnae Theatre Company
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Alumnae Theatre Company
Annual General Meeting Minutes
Date: June 9, 2013
Location: Hart House, University of Toronto, Toronto, ON
1. Call to Order:
The meeting was called to order at 2:25 pm.
2. President’s Welcome & Report Barbara Larose (see report)
o Reviewed the reports and information in the package each member received
o Reviewed the Agenda
—

Motion: That the Agenda for the 2013 Annual General Meeting be accepted.
Moved by: Ramona Baillie
Seconded by: Carolyn Zapf
Discussed growth in membership
Reported on achievement of 2 major goals
• Restoration of Charitable Status and
• Stabilization of our finances
Review the Production Season as one that we can be proud of
o New Original Work “February” by Lisa Moore
o Excellent and much lauded —“The Drowning Girls”
o Controversial version of Oscar Wilde’s, “A Woman of No Importance”
th
o Enormously successful 25
anniversary celebration of NIF
o Rarely produced, production of James Rainey’s “The Kilideer”,
enthusiastically received by the Rainey family as part of our countdown to
100 retrospective
o New Play development group activities Write Now and Big Ideas
enthusiastically received and supported
-

—

—

Other Activities of the past Season:
o Open Stage rose and flourished
o We changed structure for the coming season to include new production
umbrella event called Fireworks encouraged members to take part and be
a “Fireworker”
o Rentals have continued to be brisk and cover operational expenses
o Membership and Training and Development created survey to find out how to
improve our company
o We handed outa Fan for everyone because “we are your fan”
o Members Only part of website is launched and being developed
o E- communications improvements are in the works
o Tested online ticketing very successful so incorporating into new season
—

—

—

Challenges for the coming Season
o Growing our audience numbers continues to be a priority and a challenge
o Major renovations by the City of Toronto to promote accessibility, continue to
be a challenge in our heritage building
•
Phase 1 renovations taking place July to September
Second stage of renovation is scheduled for summer 2014
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3. Review and Approval of Minutes of AGM June 10, 2012
o 33 people attended meeting
o One change discussed in Section 7- Presentation of Reports; item k) there is
a misspelled name replace Roger McClelland with Roger McLennan
—

—

Motion: “That the June 10, 2012 minutes be approved, as amended.”
Moved by: Ellen Green
Seconded by: Dorothy Wilson
Carried.
4. Report of the Treasurer PJ Hammond (see reports)
o Catherine Spence is chair of Board of Management
o production revenues are up this year and donations are up this year
o Donating to the theatre can be mutually beneficial Canada Revenue
Agency information will be provided by PJ at later date
o Special expenditures this year $1,000 to support the Maggie Basset Award;
purchased new black legs (curtains) for the stage; $13,000 in audit costs to
bring finances up to date
o PJ noted a mathematical error in Revenue on income statement and a typo in
“years” at top of income statement columns; as amendments to the reports
o Attendance up production revenues up, expenses down four main stage
shows brought in an extra $5,000
o average attendance is over 50% which is above industry standard
o average attendance of main stage shows is over 46% which is fantastic
compared to industry standard
o audited statements for 201 1/12 not ready yet but expected by end of
summer.
—

—

-

—

—

Motion: “That the Treasurer’s Reports be accepted as amended.”
Moved by PJ Hammond
Seconded by Barbara Larose
Carried
Auditor:
New Auditor suggested: Connell Hall LLP they do work for Tarragon, Passe
Muraille and other theatre companies
Barb Connell, CPA, CA member of CICA since 1989
—

—

Motion: “That Barb Connell of Connell Hall LLP
be appointed auditor and that the Board be
authorized to set her remuneration for the 20 122013 season.”
Moved by PJ Hammond,
Seconded by Barbara Larose.
Carried.
5. Presentation of the
a. Report of the
b. Report of the
c. Report of the
d. Report of the
e. Report of the

Annual Reports (all attached)
VP Membership Ellen Green
VP Theatre Manager Catherine Spence
Marketing and Promotions Director Tina McCulloch
Program Committee Seema Lakhani
NIF Artistic Producers Carolyn Zapf
—

—

—

—

—
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f. Report of the NPD Committee Molly Thom
g. Report of the Rentals Managers Susan Wilson and Andy Fraser
o typo paragraph 3 should be 2011/2012
o Suggest FAQs re: rentals be put online
h. Report of the Director, Training & Development Brenda Darling
o Report read into the minutes as copy not available at meeting
Report of the Subscriptions Manager Lynn Patterson
o ideas re: credit for tickets not used
o committee to be formed to look at all the issues
o vouchers which can be given to others
o ticket pricing increase
j. Report of the Bar Managers Jayne Patterson
o column needs to be wider so number did not come through should be 1037
in other expenses
o need many more bar wenches
o Other revenue was “donations”
o February did not have an intermission
o Drowning girls coincided with Irish
k. Report of the Archivist Catherine Spence
o archive display put together by Carolyn Zapf
Report of the Properties Manager Razie Brownstone
o handwritten report to be typed and copy provided to Razie
o garage sale idea brought up re: extra shoes, hats, etc
m. Report of the Wardrobe Manager Razie Brownstone
n. Other Department Reports
—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

6. Special Thanks and Awards
a) Volunteer Shout Out
o Barbara would like to thank the Board of Directors
o She also thanked New Play Development
o She also thanked Producers for Season and Artistic Directors of NIF
o She thanked all members who worked on Fireworks
o She thanked those involved in Open Stage
o Thanks especially to Ellen Green and team re: AGM
o Shout out to Garbage Committee
o Ramona shouted out to Catherine Spence and Tina McCulloch re: shovelling
snow
o Ellen thanked Rae for Open Stage
o PJ thanked Howard Smith and Catherine Frid
o Seema would like to thank Jennifer Oliver
o Phoebe thanked Molly
o Deanna thanked Lynn Patterson for bringing her back to Alumnae
o Thanks to Jayne re: bar
o Rae thanked Brenda Darling
o Tabitha thanked PJ for being an Alumnae Angel
o Thanks to PJ and Molly for doing stairs
o Seema thanked Barbara standing ovation
—

b) Life Memberships
o this year celebrated 40 years at Berkley Street
o 2 members fund raised and negotiated with city to obtain this building
o they filled many roles over years
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o
o

Life Memberships awarded to Norma Crawford and Molly Thom
Standing ovation From the honorees “No more membership fees
—

—

yay!”

c) Theatre Angel
o Alumnae was the recipient of very large and generous donation $43,000
o We celebrate the Member who has also contributed much time and energy to
the Alumnae.
o Dorothy Wilson is our Theatre Angel and a small and lovely award was
presented to her with all of our gratitude.
7. Report of the Nominating Committee Barbara Larose (report attached)
o Barbara presented the report of Board Nominees and requested additional
nominations from the floor. None were forthcoming.
—

Motion: “That Nominations for Board of Director positions be closed.”
Moved by: Ellen Green
Seconded: Jane Reynolds
Motion: “That the new Board be approved/acclaimed, as submitted.”
Moved by: Ellen Green
Seconded: Carol McLennan
The report of the Nominees/Volunteers for Department Heads/Teams was
presented and additional suggestions requested from the floor.
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o

Jennifer McKinley added to NIF Artistic Producers
Dahlia Katz, Cate Frid, Molly Thom and Dianne Forrest producers
for Fireworks
Dianne Forrest would like an apprentice to train for e-news
Need one Front of House Manager; Tina McCulloch
vo!unteered;Melissa Chetty volunteered to be back up
Sara Boyd and Tina McCulloch and Rhonda Parto agreed to be on
Reservations Management Team
Spelling error Mairy Beam, not Mary
Razie has telephone tree list of volunteers; Joanna Jaciw volunteered
to assist
Marketing team need volunteers
—

—

There were no further volunteers or suggestions from the floor.
Motion “That the Nominations for Department Heads be closed.”
Moved by: Barbara Larose
Seconded by: Ramona Baillie
Carried.
Motion “That the report of Nominations for Department Heads be
approveci as amended.”
Moved by: Carolyn Zpaf
Seconded by: Molly Thom
Carried

:ii

8. Next Season Volunteer Opportunities
o fundraising
o garbage team
o Fireworks looking for volunteers join the Firecrackers short one stage
manager, costumes, furniture Joanna volunteered for costumes Sara is
volunteering
—

—

—

—

—

9. What are we up to during the summer
o Margaret Spence event June 26, 7 9 pm at the theatre to celebrate the
work of our Wardrobe Manager emeritus. This is a costume party, with
entertainment.
o Ramona and Tabitha part of committee volunteer recognition event
o Costume party —wear a costume or carry a prop from a play or film
—

—

—

10. Maggie Basset Award
o Alumnae Theatre is sponsoring for two seasons
o Whenever Maggie Basset Award is mentioned, Alumnae Theatre as sponsor
will be mentioned
o $1 ,000 per season for two years
o Members may make a donation to cover the Maggie Bassett awards
11. Lindsay Empringham
o We understand that Lindsay left money in will for Alumnae
o No money has been received from the estate to date but PJ will check
o Pat McCarthy wants to donate something in Lindsay’s memory
o Lindsay wanted to do something with the banner outside the theatre to draw
attention to the theatre
o Donations will be accepted on behalf of Lindsay’s memory
12. What is happening this summer
o Susan Wilson has been hired to play Maggie Smith at Mysteriously Yours
Dinner theatre
o Spoof of Downton Abbey called Uptown Abbey
o Joanne Williams and Anne Harper at Fringe
o Joanne Williams is directing a show at Fringe
o Deborah is a volunteer doing walks at ROM
13. Lynne Patterson does a What’s up in Toronto
send any news to her and she will get it out
-

14. Adjournment:
The AGM was adjourned at 5:22 pm. Members were invited/reminded to stay for the
Dinner and Entertainment to follow.
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Alumnae Theatre Company
Annual General Meeting, June 9, 2013
Attendance
1. Barbara Larose
2. Ellen Green
3. Carol McLennan
4. Sandra Schneider
5. Marie Gleason
6. Ramona Baillie
7. Tina McCulloch
8. Stacy Halloran
9. Aneesh Slamon
10. Particia Hammond
11. Laurie Williams
12. Rhonda Parto
13. Molly Thom
14. Rae Kolbin
15. Susan Wilson
16. Carolyn Zapf
17. Catherine Spence
18. Razie Brownstone
19. Tabitha Keast
20. Rosaleen Sherrard
21. Sara Kohal
22. Joan Burrows
23. Phoebe Cleverley
24. Deborah Roed
25. Norma Crawford
26. Melissa Chetty
27. Brenda Darling
28. Seema Lakhani
29. Naomi Hunter
30. Chantale Groulx
31. Carol Libman
32. Deanna Williams
33. Barbara Blonska
34. Jayne Patterson
35. Kay Randewich
36. Lynne Patterson
37. Sarah Boyd
38. Patricia Dawson
39. Jane Reynolds
40. Linda McCready
41. Dorothy Wilson
42. Joanna Jaciw
43. Jane Carnwath
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PRODUCTION REPORT
SHOW:
DATE:
PRODUCER:

The Underpants
September 2013
Jennifer McKinley

ATTENDANCE ANALYSIS
Regular
2forl
PWYC
Subscribers
Members
Comps
TOTix
Total Attendance
PWYC Average Price
Subscription Share

134
64
53
45
66
79
134
575
$12.64
$769.73

BOX OFFICE REVENUE

11
10
101
House Percent

35.49%

$7,300.81

EXPENSES
Royalties and Scripts
Equity/Actra Fees
Marketing Printing (posters,

1376.54
1010.00

bookmarks, programmes)

254.81

-

Marketing
(advertising and distribution)

Marketing
Miscellaneous

(artwork
and photography)
(reception,
tech lunch, supplies)

Lights
Set
Props
Costumes
Sound

975.19
550.00
563.31
0.00
875.52
75.69
213.87
0.00

Total Expenses

$5,894.93

NET PROFIT/LOSS

$1,405.88

TICKET SALES BY COMPARISON
Attendance
Underpants
575
February
578
After Mrs. Rochester
449
You Are Here
536
A Delicate Balance
664
Wit
498
Memory of Water
577
Baby with Bathwater
610
She Stoops to Conquer
589
Virginia Woolfe
834
SummerandSmoke
813

% of House
35.49%
38.09%
29.58%
31.90%
39.52%
29.64%
41.21%
43.57%
42.07%
59.57%
58.07%

ProfitlLoss
$1,405.88
43.40
-2,683.41
49.55
3,713.51
321.52
-1,658.52
-790.10
1,433.24
-157.72
917.91

PRODUCTION REPORT
SHOW:
DATE:
PRODUCER:

Fireworks
13-Nov-13
Dahlia Katz

ATTENDANCE ANALYSIS
Regular
2forl
PWYC
Subscribers
Members
Comps
Web Sales
Total Attendance
PWYC Average Price
Subscription Share

111
1
56
54
116
78
63
498
$9.91
$769.73

BOX OFFICE REVENUE

House Percent

36.89%

$5,306.62

EXPENSES
Royalties and Scripts
Marketing Printing (posters.

900.00

bookmarks, programmes)

500.00

-

Marketing
(advertising antI distribution)

Marketing
Miscellaneous

(artwork
and photography)
(reception, tech
lunch, supplies)

Lights
Set/Props
Costumes
Sound
Tech Lunches, opening night
Contingency
Roundtable honourariums
Total Expenses

450,00
450.00
200.00
100.00
800.00
600.00
50.00
150.00
200.00
$4,212.64

NET PROFIT/LOSS

$1,093.98

TICKET SALES BY COMPARISON
FireWorks
Underpants
Drowning Girls
Sylvia
Hedda Gabler
Palace of the End
Talking Heads
Pleasure
Perfect Pie
Ashes to Ashes /This is a Play
Criminal Hearts
The Real World

Attendance
498
575
492
554
599
422
381
448
365
443
410
742

% of House
36.89%
35.49%
59.64%
57.71%
69.33%
50.24%
52.92%
64.00%
40.56%
55.38%
51.25%
66.25%

Profit/Loss
1,093.98
1,405.88
-2,283.27
-859.10
-259.06
575.54
-1,544.58
-1,700.31
-1,512.18
-1,827.21
-788.04
581.90

PRODUCTION REPORT
SHOW:
DATE:
PRODUCER:

The Lady’s Not for Burning
January 2014
Barbara Larose and Ellen Green

ATTENDANCE ANALYSIS
Regular
2forl
PWYC
Subscribers
Members
Comps
TOTix
Total Attendance
PWYC Average Price
Subscription Share

99
36
89
46
67
144
162
643
$12.89
$769.73

BOX OFFICE REVENUE

11
10
101
House Percent

39.69%

$7,934.34

EXPENSES
Royalties and Scripts
Equity/Actra Fees
Marketing Printing (posters,

1151.94
2020.00

bookmarks, programmes)

274.98

-

Marketing
(advertising and distribution)

Marketing

(artwork
and photography)

1271.25
733.56

Miscellaneous

(reception,
tech lunch, supplies)

Lights
Set
Props
Costumes
Sound

409.33
305.08
791.01
13.67
323.42
80.00

Total Expenses

NET PROFIT/LOSS

TICKET SALES BY COMPARISON
Attendance
Lady s Not for Burning
643
Fireworks
498
Underpants
575
A Woman of No Importance
865
The Trojan Women
728
Hound/Magritte
769
Hay Fever
843
Pride and Prejudice
1300
Private Lives
747
Lady Windemeres Fan
1102
Homeward Bound
539
After You (+ student performance)
722
ALieoftheMind
758
Amy’s View
504

$7,374.24

$560.10

% of House
39 69%
36 89%
35.49%
52.23%
43.96%
45.77%
50.18%
77.3 8%
53.36%
79.86%
3 8.50%
51.57%
54.15%
36.00%

Profit/Loss
$560 10
1 093 98
1,405.88
4,983.94
1,727.36
1,330.49
4,455.49
7,452.07
247.48
6,754.42
-976.75
-1,115.36
-1,122.11
-327.06

PRODUCTION REPORT
SHOW:
DATE:
PRODUCER:

New Ideas Festival 2014
March 12 to March 30, 2014
Carolyn Zapf I Pat McCarthy I Jennifer McKinley

REVENUE:
BOX OFFICE
ATTENDANCE ANALYSIS
•
REGULAR
NIF Passes
PWYC
Subscribers
Members
Comps
Writers/Directors
Arts People (online)
Total Attendance
PWYC Average Price
Festival Passes Sold
Subscription Share

359
16
82
72
165
52
14
262
1022
$8.22
6
$769.73

TOTAL BOX OFFICE

House Percent

62.39%

$11,504.56

OTHER REVENUE

$650.69

TOTAL NIF REVENUE

12,155.25

EXPENSES:
Reading/Directors/Audition
Equity/Actra Fees
Marketing Printing (postero,

289.77
0.00

bookmarks, programmes)

1001.18

-

Marketing
(advertising aod distribution)

Marketing

40.00

(artwork aed
photography)

0.00
755.24
275.01
30.06
294.40

Misc (serb. nupphes)

Opening Nights
Rehearsal space rental
Play Allotments
TOTAL EXPENSES

NET PROFIT/LOSS

$2,685.66

V

$9,469.59

TICKET SALES BY COMPARISON
NW 2014
Lady’s Not for Burning
Fireworks
Underpants
NIF 2013
NIF 2012
NIP 2011
NW 2010
N1F2009
NIF 2008
N1F2007
NIF 2006
NIF 2005
NIF 2004
V

Attendance
1022
643
498
575
1260
1246
987
1179
1089
924
1026
1149
1280
1259

% of House
62.39%
3.96%
36.89%
35.49%
75.00%
76.07%
76.16%
90.97%
78.57%
66.00%
62.64%
72.54%
79.01%
77.72%

Profit/Loss
$9,469.59
560.10
1,093,98
1,405.88
$10,308.10
9,949.34
5,325.63
7,259.65
4,601.53
4,210.25
4,018.52
4,865.65
7,156.67
2,747.39
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PRODUCTION REPORT
SHOW:
DATE:
PRODUCER:

Rabbit Hole
April, 2014
Brenda DarlingfFrancine Dick

ATTENDANCE ANALYSIS
Regular
2forl
PWYC
Subscribers
Members
Comps
TOTix
Total Attendance
PWYC Average Price
Subscription Share

98
89
37
30
62
96
95
507
$11.03
$769.73

BOX OFFICE REVENUE

11
10
101
House Percent

3 1.30%

$5,711.77

EXPENSES
Royalties and Scripts
Equity/Actra Fees
Marketing Printing (posters

966 21
000

bookmarks, programmes)

216.84

Marketing
(advertising and distribution)

Marketing

(artwork
and photography)

201.85
450.00

Miscellaneous

(rareption,
tech lunch, supplies)

Lights
Set
Props
Costumes
Sound

555.53
410.00
1462.83
392.44
304.72
10.66

Total Expenses

NET PROFIT/LOSS

TICKET SALES BY COMPARISON
Attendance
Rabbit Hole
507
NIF 2014
1022
Lady’s Not for Burning
643
Fireworks
498
Underpants
575
Killdeer
591
Cosi
647
GuineaPigging
514
Queens
478
Closer
620
Daughter
757
If WeAre Women
437
Moonlight and Valentino
499
Problem Child/Criminal Genius
889

$4,971.08

$740.69

% of House
31.30%
62.39%
39.69%
36.89%
35.49%
31.30%
39.07%
30.60%
28.45%
36.90%
54.07%
31.21%
35.64%
63.50%

Profit/Loss
$740.69
9,469.59
560.10
1,093.98
1,405.88
740.69
1,940.53
-504.62
-929.28
1,719.17
-1,593.35
-1,688.09
-52.33
3,767.39

HISTORICAL SEASON TOTALS:
2013-2014 Season Totals
2012-2013 Season Totals
2011-2012 Season Totals
2010-2011 Season Totals
2009/2010 Season Totals
—
2008/2009 Season Totals
2007/2008 Season Totals
2006/2007 Season Totals
2005/2006 Season Totals
2004/2005 Season Totals
AVERAGE

SEASON TOTALS
The Underpants
FireWorks
The Lady is Not for Burning
New Ideas Festival
Rabbit Hole
2013-2014 Season Totals

PRODUCTION EXPENSES:

HISTORICAL SEASON TOTALS:
201 3-2014 Season Totals
201 2-2013 Season Totals
2011-2012 Season Totals
2010/2011 Season Totals
2009/2010 Season Totals
2008/2009 Season Totals
2007/2008 Season Totals
2006/2007 Season Totals
2005/2006 Season Totals
2004/2005 Season Totals

SEASON TOTALS
The Underpants
FireWorks
The Lady is Not for Burning
New Ideas Festival
Rabbit Hole
2013-2014 Season Totals

PRODUCTION REVENUE:

--

134
112
99
359
98
802

2 fer 1/NIF

6I
1
3(
lE
8
224 I

-

53
56
89
82
37
317

pwYC
45
54
46
72
30
247

Siihcrihprq

66
116
67
165
62
476

Mmhr,

4,360.48
2,538.67
5,831.35
3,273.05
4,032.00
4,133.99
2,359.40
2,447.98
3,230.99
2,585.99
3,479.39

Royalties
1,296.54
900.00
966.21
231.52
966.21
4,360.48

—

-

3,030.00
5,783.49
10,387.74
161.00
3,116.00
9,897.00
4,824.45
6,828.55
9,133.57
11,081.20
6,424.30

3,030.00

-

-

2,020.00

-

Equity
1,010.00

5,760.61
9,606.49
13,371.04
10,337.43
11,238.92
12,457.69
14,241.85
13,102.50
13,451.08
11,389.62
11,495.72

Publicity
1,625.19
810.21
2,114.81
418.55
791.85
5,760.61

11,987.46
13,694.98
6,372.06
8,285.00
8,697.66
8,603.27
12,006.00
8,905.78
5,285.40
8,392.50
9,223.01

Other
1,963.20
2,502.43
2,273.22
2,035.59
3,213.02
11,987.46

25,138.55
31,623.63
35,962.19
22,056.48
26,116.89
35,091.95
33,431.70
31,284.81
31,101.04
33,449.31
30,525.66

Total
5,894.93
4,212.64
7,374.24
2,685.66
4,971.08
25,138.55

(Underpants, FireWorks, Lady’s Not for Burning, NIF, Rabbit Hole)
(February, Drowning Girls, Woman of No Importance, NIF, Killdeer)
(After Mrs. Rochester, Sylvia, Trojan Women, NIF, Cosi)
You Are Here, Hedda Gabler, Hound/Magritte, NIF, GuineaPigging)
Delicate Balance, Palace of the End, Hay Fever, NIF, The Queens)
Wit, Talking Heads, P&P, NIF, Closer)
Memory, Pleasure, Private, New Ideas, Daughter)
Baby, Perfect Pie, Lady Windermere, New Ideas, Women)
She Stoops, Ashes/Play, Homeward Bound, New Ideas, Moonlight)
(Who’s Afraid of VW, Criminal Hearts, After You, New Ideas, Walker plays)

—

Reaubr

79
78
144
66
96
463

(nmn

—

Total
Attendance
3245
3786
3624
3405
3586
3888
3453
3540
3219
4135
3588

575
498
643
1022
507
3245

Total

Attendance Change
from Prey. Year
-1 0.46%
4.47%
6.43%
-5.05%
-7.77%
12.60%
-2.46%
9.97%
-22.15%
-7.43%
-2.18%

Perecentaae
of House
35.49%
36.89%
39.69%
62.39%
31.30%
41.15%

$
$
$
$
$
$
$

$

Total
Revenue
38,408.81
47,247.35
44,974.28
39,101.00
41,151.80
47,721.66
34,845.19
38,067.39
34,543.64
39,779.54
40,584.07

7.30081
5.30662
7934.34
12.1 55.25
5,711.77
38,408.81

$—__________

flasian. ,a

printed on 2014-06-03

Attendance dropped by 500, the biggest drop we have seen in 9 years.
Revenue also dropped, by $9,000.00
Good news, our expenses also dropped.
Our publicity costs were very low, as 3 of 5 shows did not buy NOW ads.

NOTES

AVERAGE

I

Online
134
63
162
262
95
716

ANALYSIS OF PRODUCTION REVENUE AND EXPENSES

ALUMNAE THEATRE COMPANY

TOTAL BUDGET

Bank charges (inc. cheque orders & I

534.34

0.00

-

31,600.32

$

CONTINGENCY (misc)

3,803.41

$

$

BUILDING REPAIRS
Alarm system
Other repairs (repairs)
Building Improvements (repairs)
TOTAL BUILDING R&M

-

534.34

$

AUDIT FEES (misc)

14,454.40

5,948.64

6,859.53

$

$

6,516.96
5,371.61
1,707.62
858.21

UTILITIES
Hydro
Gas
Water
Telephone
TOTAL UTILITIES

ADMINISTRATION

$

5,948.64

INSURANCE

2,088.09
1,715.32

$

1,020.00
271.20
1,242.77
932.35
1,121.64
791.00
1,270.47
210.10

MAINTENANCE
Janitorial
Window cleaning
Pest Control
Trash Removal
Air Conditioning (misc)
Fire Inspection (misc)
Supplies
Maintenance
TOTAL MAINTENANCE

2013 ACTUALS

ALUMNAE THEATRE COMPANY
BOARD OF MANAGEMENT
COMPARISON OF ACTUAL TO BUDGET
JANUARY 1 TO DECEMBER 3 1,2013

150.00

2,500.00

1,500.00
2,000.00
3,500.00

1,000.00

5,000.00
7,000.00
1,700.00
700.00

5,650.00

1,750.00
300.00
900.00
750.00
500.00
800.00
1,500.00
1,000.00

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

2013 PROPOSED

38,200.00

150.00

2,500.00

7,000.00

1,000.00

14,400.00

5,650.00

7,500.00

BOARD OF MANAGEMENT
ALUMNAE THEATRE COMPANY
JANUARY 1, 2013 TO DECEMBER 31, 2013

The theatre building is owned by the City of Toronto and has been made available to the
Alumnae Theatre Company. The City does not charge us a rental fee, but, under the terms of the
agreement, we are responsible for all the costs of “running” the building on a day-to-day basis;
heat, light, cleaning, general maintenance, etc. Major expenses such as replacing the roof are
negotiated with the City. The Alumnae Theatre Company’s Board of Management, chaired by
Catherine Spence, oversees the management of our beloved building.
The Board of Management prepares a budget annually and submits it to the Alumnae Theatre
Company’s Board of Directors for approval. As needed, the Alumnae Theatre Company
transfers funds to the Board of Management so that the building’s expenses can be paid. The
Board of Management’s fiscal year is January 1 to December 31 (whereas the Alumnae Theatre
Company’s fiscal year is July 1 to June 30).
Expenses for running the building in 2013 amounted to $31,600.32 which is more than $6,000
below what was budgeted. Most of the savings were a result of not spending the Building
Improvement or Contingency funds. That is not to say, we did not make improvements. The
alarm system was upgraded, but the cost was anticipated. The overage in that category was a
result of Bell Canada issues that resulted in false alarms. We have also not paid any audit fees,
as the audit of BOM books is not part of the theatre company audit.
It is now difficult to say who deserves a bigger thank you Michael Spence or Angus Barlow.
Both devote innumerable hours to taking care of us and our building, performing all the essential
and sometimes unglamorous tasks that keep the old fire hail running like a well-oiled machine.
-

Respectfully submitted,

Shelley Cahill / PJ Hammond
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ALUMNAE THEATRE COMPANY
STATEMENT OF CASH/INVESTMENT

as of May 31, 2014
Alumnae Theatre Current Account Balance
Alumnae Theatre Board of Management Account
ING Savings Account
RBC Investment Account

$
$
$
$

TOTAL CASH/INVESTMENTS

$ 119,365.04

11,625.57
2,138.52
105,600.95

INCOME STATEMENT (UNAUDITED)
2013/2014 FISCAL YEAR
2013/2014
REVENUE
Underpants
Fireworks
Lady’s Not for Burning
New Ideas Festival
Rabbit Hole
Subscriptions
Production Revenue
Donations
Memberships
Theatre Rentals
NPD Events
Investment Income
HST Rebate
Other Revenue

6,531.08
4,516.89
6,164.61
11,385.52
4,942.04
4,013.67

General Production & Equipmen
Board of Management
General and Administration
Directors’ Insurance
Publicity
Membership Expenses
Subscription Exenses
Rental Expenses
Bank Charges
Audit Costs
Other Expenses
TOTAL EXPENSES

5,217.00
5,430.00
10,187.00
14,786.80
5,593.02
3,710.00
37,553.81.

.

1,469.00
6,324.00
49,000.00

44,923.82

51,729.70
9,387.10
76,952.50

720.49
2,144.23

59,657.72

TOTAL REVENUE
EXPENSES
Underpants
Fireworks
Lady’s Not for Burning
New Ideas Festival
Rabbit Hole
Production Exnenses

2012/2013

138,069.30
182,993.12

97,211.53

5,894.93
4,212.64
7,374.24
2,685.66
5,013.39

5,047.39
7,042.22
5,999.31
6,244.23
5,220.93

25,180.86

29,554.08

6,837.78
23,500.00
10,437.06
1,923.48
4,916.27
3,698.11
84.05
22,752.26
281.46
4,350.00

2,712.81
36,000.00
10,956.83
1,923.48
1,940.70
10,901.05
32,590.22
279.24
13,560.00

78,780.47
103,961.33

110,864.33

140,418.41

PRODUCTION OPERATING SURPLUS (LOSS)

$ 12,372.95

$ 15,369.74

THEATRE RENTALS OPERATING SURPLUS (LOSS)

$

26,247.74

$ 44,362.28

NET OPERATING SURPLUS (LOSS) FOR THE YEAR

-$

6,749.80

$ 42,574.71

printed on 2014-06-03

***

Mis. Expenses
TOTAL EXPENSES
NET INCOME

Construction

Special Projects
MS EventlGALNmaggie Bass’

Advertising & Promotion
Website

Marketing & Promotion

Telephone
Administration
Audit
Insurance
Membership Costs
Rental Costs
Bank Services Charges

General Production

Board of Management

Operating Expenses

Artists Fees
Production Costs

EXPENSES
Artistic

TOTAL REVENUE

Other

Bank & Investment Interest

Special Projects
Other

Ontario Arts Council
Toronto Arts Council
Canada Council

Government Grants

Corporate

Individual

Donations

Performances Fee
Subscriptions
NPD I Special Events
Memberships
Rentals

Earned Revenue

REVENUE

2,170.00

-

-

6,925.67

.

-

-

.

11,011
-4,661

-

-

482.31

-

2,221.24

8,365
-6,195

-

10.17
261.29

330.66

-

2,970.00
8.64

.

-

1,810.00
51.04

.

2,000.00
194.03
118.48
42.93

2,428.96

.

691.73
176.27
9,714
-2,788

-

1,059.24
1,216.00

1,694.37
452.00
34.38

-

-

2,000.00
379.56
121.87
1,177.46

711.08

-

AUGUST SEPTEMBER
2013
2013

-

-

3,518.00
118.48

1,010.00
1,800.00

JULY
2013

-

3,660.83

-

-

-

-

.

-

1,050.00

-

875.00

-

1,463.12
272.71

8,476
9,366

-

-

-

-

-

2,678.94
23.24

-

-

-

118.48
1,019.12

-

2,000.00

2,635.82

-

13,008
2,333

-

-

.

-

-

155.42
3,050.00
29.82

-

2,000.00
395.27
121.87
797.10
4,350.00

1,040.00
1,068.65

10,713
-7,052

-

-

-

-

185.05
5,495.00
36.08

-

-

-

2,000.00
538.56
121.87

980.00
1,356.22

OCTOBER NOVEMBER DECEMBER
2013
2013
2013

15,340.66

-

17,841.75

.

-

-

.

-

-

-

56.00

905.00
11,11.00

-

-

3,264.66

-

-

-

-

.

-

105.00

1,025.00
9,545.00

-

5,990.21
1,176.54

INCOME STATEMENT As at May31, 2014

ALUMNAE THEATRE COMPANY

6,350.00

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

.

-

-

.

70.00

950.00
3,495.00

-

1,211.25
1,199.42

2013

-

-

-

125.00
1220.00

-

825.00

-

2013

OCTOBER NOVEMBER DECEMBER
2013
2013
2013

As at May31, 2014

AUGUST SEPTEMBER

-

-

.

-

1,795.00
4,180.00

-

375.00

.

2013

JULY

INCOME STATEMENT

ALUMNAE THEATRE COMPANY

4,662.61

-

-

-

.

-

-

-

-

-

146.00

-

-

4,516.61

2014

6,878
-1,685

-

93.69

-

226.76

-

7.87
225.00
13.66

-

-

126.26
1,129.31

.

1,000.00

4,055.06

-

5,412
-749

-

-

1,000.00

-

-

17.30

-

-

-

3,000.00
126.72
125.55
21.36

1,120.97

.

JANUARY FEBRUARY
2014
2014

5,192.63

.

-

-

-

-

-

.

45.00

125.00
3,525.00

-

-

1,497.63

2014

JANUARY FEBRUARY

11,950
-1,917

-

-

-

-

1,271.25

1,923.48
521.00
2,331.32
29.60

-

3,500.00
4.51
125.52
269.81

1,973.63

-

MARCH
2014

10,032.67

.

-

-

-

-

-

-

13.00

50.00
4,175.00

-

-

5,794.67

2014

MARCH

8,343
3,909

-

-

-

-

-

19.74

-

35,15

-

-

3,000.00
291.53
125.54
1,104.39

3,767.00

-

APRIL
2014

12,251.99

-

-

-

.

-

-

-

110.00

140.00
5,395.00

-

-

6,606.99

2014

APRIL

720.49
2,144.23
97,209.53

-

-

-

-

1,449.00

6,274.00
49,000.00

-

33,608.14
4,013.67

10,042
2,739

-

-

-

-

1,252.27

1,529.25
3,240.00
17.96

-

-

-

3,000.00
231.35
125.54

645.28

-

-

1,492.48
1,046.71
176.27
103,911.33
(6,701.80)

5,804.00
1,773.42

23,500.00
5,679.53
1,349.46
5,561.48
4,350.00
1,923.48
4,128.11
22,252.26
281.46

3,030.00
21,562.67

Accumulated
MAY ACTUAL
2014 AsatO5/31/2014

720.49
2,144.23
12,780.72

-

-

-

-

-

-

138.00
6,350.00

-

3,263.00
165.00

2014 AsatO5/31/2014

Accumulated
MAY ACTUAL

121,193.87
6,208.84

-

-

1,302.00

1,940.70

26,000.00
2,372.57
1,560.50
5,525.61
1 3,560.00
1,923.48
8,823.43
28,360.30
270.82

5,696.72
23,857.74

Accumulated
ACTUAL
AsatO5/31/2013

127,402.71

-

-

-

6,378.00

8,352.00
67,748.00

41,214.71
3,710.00

Asat0513112013

Accumulated
ACTUAL

(0.24)

(1.00)

(0.79>
(0.94)

(1.00)
(0.90)

0.15
#OIV/Ol
#DIV/0!
(0.141
2.08

1.99
#DIV/0!

(0.53)
(0.22)
0.04

-

(0.10)
1.39
(0.14)
0.01
(0.68)

(0.47)
(0.10)

Change of
ACTUAL
2013-14

2013-14

Change of
ACTUAL

ALUMNAE THEATRE COMPANY
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JUNE 30, 2012

çonnellHai,LLP

cflflE?III’I a II

LLP
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Chartered Accountants
T: (416) 863-0111

F: (416) 363-1709

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

•

Business Advisors

E: info@connellhall.com

To the Directors of
Alumnae Theatre Company
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Alumna Theatre Company, which
comprise the statement of financial position as at June 30, 2012 and the statements of operating
revenues and expenses and changes in net assets for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s responsibility for the financial statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles, and for such internal
control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements basçd on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of the financial statements in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of Alumnae Theatre Company as at June 30, 2012 and its financial performance and its changes
in net assets for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian generally accepted
accounting principles.

Other Matter
The financial statements of Alumnae Theatre Company for the year ended June 30, 2011 were
audited by another auditor who expressed an unmodified opinion on those statements on June 11,
2012

November 23, 2013

Corinell Hall LLP
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ALUMNAE THEATRE COMPANY
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
JUNE 30, 2012
ASSETS
2012
Current assets
Cash
Due from General Fund (Note 4)
Prepaid expenses

$

Capital assets (Note 3)

2011
(Note 8)

83,598
5,657
3,432
92,687

$

23,783

$

116,470

$

4,000
5,657
9,657

75646
5,657
1,706
83,009
25,192

_$

108,201

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Accounts payable
Due to Special Purpose Fund (Note 4)

$

11,550
5,657
17,207

NET ASSETS
Net assets
General Fund
Special Purpose Fund (Note 4)

101,156
5,657
106,813

$

Approved on behalf of the Board

Director

Director

LS

(See notes to the financial statements)
-3--
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LLP

116,470

85,337
5,657
90,994

$

108,201

ALUMNAE THEATRE COMPANY
STATEMENT OF OPERATING REVENUES AND EXPENSES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012
2012

2011

(Note 8)
Revenues
Production box office
Rental income
Membership dues and subscriptions
Bar and other income
Donations
Amortization of Trillium capital asset grant (Note 3)
Interest

$

40,000
71,912
11,715
3,120
5,090
686
132,523

39,614
88,109
11,361
2,421
794
2,111
373
144,783

39,193
27,000
31,625
2,624
1,326
4,000
8,727
2,209
116,704

37,456
21,176
39,752
3,684
4,174
4,000
16,503
4,319
131,044

$

-

Expenses
Production
Building operations
Theatre rental and bar
Publicity
Membership
Audit
General and administration
Amortization of capital assets

Excess of operating revenue over expenses

(See notes to the financial statements)

COnneIIHaIILLP

$

15,819

$

13,739

ALUMNAE THEATRE COMPANY
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30 2012
General
Fund
Balance, beginning of the year (Note 8)

$

Excess of revenues over expenses
(2011 restated -Note 8)
Balance, end oftheyear

Special
Purpose Fund

85,337

$

2012

5,657

15,819

$

101,156

$

5,657

(See notes to the financial statements)
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$

2011
(Note 8)

90,994

77,255

15,819

13,739

106,813

$

90,994

ALUMNAE THEATRE COMPANY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2012
NATURE OF ORGANIZATION
The Alumnae Theatre Company (“ATC”) was established in 1918
as the University Alumnae
Dramatic Club. it was incorporated in 1960 as a not-for-profit
corporation under the Ontario
Corporations Act, 1953. The name of the organization was change
d by Supplementary Letters
Patent dated October 2, 1990. The objects of ATC are to:
(a)
(b)
(c)

Educate and increase the publics appreciation of the arts:
Provide instructional seminars:
Produce festivals for the purpose of education and appreciation.

As a not-for-profit organization under the Income Tax Act (Canad
a), ATC is exempt from income
taxes.
2.

SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(a)

Revenue recognition
ATC uses the deferral method with fund accounting to accoun for
t
contributions. Unrestricted
contributions are recognized as revenues when received or receiva
ble, provided that
contributions receivable can be reasonably estimated and collection
is reasonably assured.
Restricted contributions, including grants, are recognized as revenu
es in the year in which
the related activities are carried out and expenses are incurred.
Box office, bar and rental income and other performance related revenu
es are recognized
when received or receivable upon substantial completion of perform
ance, provided that the
amount to be received can be reasonably estimated and collection
is reasonably assured.
Donations are recognized as revenues when received. Membership
fees are recognized as
revenues for the year in which the fees relate.

(b)

Capital asset expenditures
Capital assets are recorded at cost less accumulated amortizatIon. Amortization
is
calculated on a straight line basis at an annual rate of 15% for theatre equipm
ent and 2%
for leasehold improvements.
Grants received to fund the purchase of capital assets are initially deferred and amorti
zed to
revenues on the same basis as the related capital assets is amortized to expens
e.

(c)

Contributed services
Volunteers contribute their services to assist ATC in its service delivery activities. Because
these services are not purchased by ATC, and due to the difficulty of determining the fair
value of contributed services, these contributions have not been recognized in the
accompanying financial statements.
-6-
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ALUMNAE THEATRE COMPANY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2012
2,

SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(d)

Use of estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian
generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent
assets and
liabilities (if any) at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results may
vary from the
current estimates. These estimated are reviewed periodically and, as adjustments
become
necessary, they are reported in operations in the periods in which such
adjustments become
known. Financial statement items subject to management estimate include
revenue
recognition, accrual of expenses, and the completeness of accounts payable
and accrued
liabilities.

(e)

Financial instruments
The financial assets and financial liabilities of the ATC are classified and measured
as
disclosed in the following table. Classification depends on the purpose for which
the
instruments were acquired or issued. Settlement date accounting is used.
Financial assetjliabiljty

Category

Cash

Available for sale

Fair value

Accounts payable and
accrued liabilities

Other financial
liabilities

Amortized cost

Measurement

Financial instruments measured at amortized cost are initially recognized at fair
value and
then subsequently at amortized cost with gains and losses recognized in the
statement of
operations in the period in which the gain or loss occurs.
(f)

Statement of cash flows
A statement of cash flows has not been presented as information about cash flows is readily
available in the financial statements.

3.

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
The organization’s premises at 70 Berkeley Street, Toronto, and leasehold improvements and
additions thereto, with the exception of theatre equipment, are the property of the City of Toronto.
On behalf of the City of Toronto, a Board of Management operates the premises solely for the
activities and operations of Alumnae Theatre Company. The organization makes staff and funds
available to the Board of Management to allow it to carry out its fiduciary duties without cost to the
City of Toronto. Alumnae Theatre Company may levy and retain charges for the use of the
premises.
-7-
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ALUMNAE THEATRE COMPANY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2012
3.

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (continued)
The Alumnae Theatre Company, at its own expense, has undert
aken certain alterations and
improvements to the property. If the organization should have
to abandon the premises, under
certain circumstances the City of Toronto will reimburse the
organization for the cost of these
leasehold improvements, to a maximum of $1 00,000 less accum
ulated amortization from October
15, 1972.

Cost
Theatre equipment
Trillium theatre equipment
Leasehold improvements

Net book value

$

$

2012
Accumulated
Amortization

76,892
51,625
110,390
238,907
(215,124)

76,092
51,625
87,407
$ 215,124

23,783

Cost

$

$

76,092
51,625
110390
238,107
(212,915)

2011
Accumulated
Amortization

$

$

76,092
51,625
85,198
212,915

25,192

Trillium theatre equipment consists of additions to theatre equipm
ent which were funded by a
capital asset grant in the amount of $57,500 from Ontario Trilliu
m Foundation. Amortization of
equipment additions and the related amortization of the capital asset
grant commenced in the year
ended June 30, 2004, when the equipment additions were put
in use. The grant and related
equipment were lully amortized during the year ended June 30, 2011.

4.

SPECIAL PURPOSE FUNDS
The Board of Directors of the Alumnae Theatre Company has design
ated certain funds raised for
scholarships.and directors’ awards as “Special Purpose Funds”. It has
also designated other
special funds as memorials.

5.

CAPITAL DISCLOSURES
ATC defines its capital as the amounts included in its surplus. The organi
zation’s objective when
managing its capital is to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concer
n so that it can continue
to provide the appropriate level of benefits and services to its constituency. The
Board of Directors
does not establish quantitative return on capital criteria for management, but rather
relies on the
expertise of management to meet these goals.

6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The carrying amounts of cash, and accounts payable and accrued liabilities approx
imate their fair
value due to the short term nature of these financial instruments. It is management’s opinio
n that,
unless otherwise noted, ATC is not exposed to significant currency, interest rate or credit
risks
arising from these financial instruments, except as otherwise noted.
-8-

ConneiiH all

LLP

gj
ALUMNAE THEATRE COMPANY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2012
6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Interest rate risk
The organization is exposed to interest rate risk arising from fluctuations in interest
rates on its
bank deposits.
Liquidity risk
ATC is exposed to liquidity risk to the extent that it must meet its financial obligations
as these fall
due. ATC’s approach to managing liquidity risk is to ensure that it has sufficient cash
and other
current financial assets to meet its obligations when due, without incurring unacceptable losses
or
damage to its reputation. Management forecasts cash flows to identify financing requirements
.
These requirements are then addressed through cash management. As at fune 30, 2012,
ATC
had accounts payable and accrued liabilities of $4,000 due within twelve months.
Credit risk
Cash is deposited with a major Canadian chartered bank. Management does not believe
that the
organization is subject to any significant credit risk in this regard.

7.

SUBSEQUENT ACCOUNTING CHANGES
The Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants has issued new accounting standards for not-forprofit enterprises. The new standards took effect for fiscal years beginning on or after
January 1
2012. The organization had the option of choosing a new framework based on International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS”) or the new Accounting Standards for Private Enterprises
(“ASPE”) plus the existing Section 4400 reporting standards for not-for-profit organizations. For
the year ending June 30, 2013 ATC has chosen to prepare its financial statements in accordance
with Canadian accounting standards for not-for-profit organizations.

8.

PRIOR PERIOD RESTATEMENT
The comparative figures presented have been adjusted as a result of a misstatement discovered on
the previously reported financial statements, as follows:
June 30
2011
Net assets, as originally stated
Adjustment to cash, and bar and other income (and corresponding net
income for the year)

$

Net assets, as restated

$
-9-
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2,421
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FINANCIAL STAi
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Directors of
Alumnae Theatre Company
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Alumnae Theatre Company, which comprise
the statement of financial position as at June 30, 2013, June 30, 2012 and July 1, 2011, and the
statements of operating revenues and expenses, changes in net assets and the statement of cash flows
for the years ended June 30, 2013 and June 30, 2012 and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.
,

Management’s responsibility for the financial statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Canadian accounting standards for not-for-profit organizations and for such internal
control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditor’s responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial a,tments based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian general a’cépted auditing standards. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plant*4pècrmthe audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free
afiaI misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audi
about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depd”6 (pl uditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement dfi fi
ial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the audi
deçjpternal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
of the financial statements in order to des
audit
céd’ures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an
•on of I effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriat
s accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by management, a
II as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.
Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
Alumnae Theatre Company as at June 30, 2013, June 30, 2012 and July 1, 2011 and its financial
performance, its changes in net assets and its cash flows for the years ended June 30, 2013 and June 30,
2012, in accordance with Canadian accounting standards for not-for-profit organizations.

May, 2014
Toronto, Ontario

Connell Hall LLP
Licensed Public Accountants

ALUMNAE THEATRE COMPANY
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
JUNE 30. 2013
ASSETS
June 30,
2013

Current assets
Cash
Due from General Fund
Prepaid expenses

$

Capital assets (Note 3)

129,468
5,657
1,344
136,469

June 30.
2012

$

21.414

$

83,598
5,657
3,432
92,687

July 1.2011

$

23,783

75,646
5,657
1,706
83,009
25.192

157.883

$

116,470

$

108.201

8,000

$

4,000
5,657
9.657

$

11,550
5.657
17,207

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Accounts payable
Due to Special Purpose Fund

General Fund
Special Purpose Funds (Note 4)

138,569
5,657
144,226

$

157,883

Approved by the Board

(See notes to the financial statements)
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101,156
5,657
106,813

$

116.470

85,337
5,657
90.994

$

108.201

ALUMNAE THEATRE COMPANY
STATEMENT OF OPERATING REVENUES AND EXPENSES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2013
2013
Revenues
Production box office
Rental income
Membership dues and subscriptions
Bar and other revenue
Donations
Interest

$

Expenses
Production
Building operations
Theatre rental and bar
Publicity
Membership
General and administration
Amortization of capital assets

41,214
69,210
13,097
3,115
51,730
585
178,951

2012

$

34,640
36,000
24,848
1,941
10,901
30,839
2,369
141,538

Excess of operating revenues over expenses

39,193
27,000
28,080
2,624
1,326
12,727
2,209
113,159

$

(See notes to the financial statements)
-4-

40,000
68,367
11,715
3,120
5,090
686
128,978

15,819

ALUMNAE THEATRE COMPANY
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2013
Special
PurDose Fund

GeneralFund

$

Balance, beginning of the year

37,413

Excess of revenues over expenses
Balance, end of the year

101,156 $

$

138,569

5,657 $

$

106,813 $
37,413

-

5,657

(See notes to the financial statements)
-5-

2013

$

144.226

90,994
15,819

$

106,813

37

ALUMNAE THEATRE COMPANY
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2013
2013
Cash provided by (used in) operating activities
Excess of revenues over expenses
Add back amortization net
(Increase) decrease of prepaid expenses
Increase (decrease) of accounts payable

$

-

37,413
2,369
2,088
4,000
45,870

2012

$

Cash provided by (used in) investing activities
(Increase) in capital assets

15,819
2,209
(1,726)
(7,550)
8,752
(800)

Increase (decrease) in cash

45,870

7,952

Cash and equivalents, beginning of year

83,598

75,646

Cash and equivalents, end of year

$

(See notes to the financial statements)
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129,468

$

83,598

ALUMNAE THEATRE COMPANY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2013

NATURE OF ORGANIZATION
The Alumnae Theatre Company (“ATC”) was established in 1918 as the University Alumnae
Dramatic Club. It was incorporated in 1960 as a not-for-profit corporation under the Ontario
Corporations Act, 1953. The name of the organization was changed by Supplementary Letters
Patent dated October 2, 1990. The objectives of ATC are to:
(a)
(b)
(c)

Educate and increase the public’s appreciation of the arts;
Provide instructional seminars;
Produce festivals for the purpose of education and appreciation

As a not-for-profit organization under the Income Tax Act (Canada), ATC is exempt from income
taxes.
2

SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(a)

Adoption of new accounting standards
Effective July 1, 2012, ATC adopted the reu1e
of the Canadian Institute of
Chartered Accountants (CICA) Handbopk 4c&ting, electing to adopt the new
Canadian accounting standards for noryfrçfit,organizations (‘ASNPO”). These are the
organization’s first financial statemesfr
d in accordance with ASNPO, which have
been applied retrospectively. The boun policies, described as follows, have been
applied in preparing the fina I
‘taints for the year ended June 30, 2013, the
ente i th’ee financial statements for the year ended June
comparative information
ion of n opening ASNPO statement of financial position at
30, 2012, and in the pre
f transition). In its opening statement of financial
July 1, 2011 (the organizati
a
position ATC:
(i)

recognized all assets and liabilities, the recognition of which is required by ASNPO’s;

(ii) did not recognize items as assets or liabilities if ASNPO’s do not permit such
recognition, and
(iii) applied ASNPO’s in measuring all recognized assets and liabilities.
In accordance with the new requirements, the accounting policies as set out below have
been consistently applied to all years presented. The adoption of ASNPO’s has no impact
on the previously reported statement of financial position as at July 1, 2011, or on the
previously reported statements of operations, changes in net assets for the year ended
June 30, 2012.
(b)

Revenue recognition
ATC uses the deferral method with fund accounting to account for contributions.
Unrestricted contributions are recognized as revenues when received or receivable,
provided that contributions receivable can be reasonably estimated and collection is
reasonably assured. Restricted contributions, including grants, are recognized as
revenues in the year in which the related activites are carried out and expenses are
-7-
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ALUMNAE THEATRE COMPANY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30. 2013
2

SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(b)

Revenue recognition (continued)
incurred.
Box office, bar and rental income and other performance-related revenues are recognized
when received or receivable upon susbtantial completion of performance, provided that the
amount to be received can be reasonably estimated and collection is reasonably assured.
Donations are recognized as revenues when recieved. Membership fees are recognized
as revenues for the year to which the fees relate.

(C)

Capital asset expenditures
Capital assets are recorded at cost less accumulated amortization. Amortization is
calculated on a straight-line basis at an annual rate of 15% for theatre requipment and 2%
for leasehold improvements.
Grants received to fund the purchase of
to revenues on the same basis as the

(d)

Contributed goods and services
Volunteers contribute their
these services are not pur
value of contributed se
accompanying financial
can be reasonably determi

(e)

initially deterred and amortized
is amortized to expense.

in its service delivery activities. Because
and due to the difficulty of determining the fair
ons have not been recognized in the
goods are recognized when their fair value

Use of estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian accounting standards
for not-for-profit organizations requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent
assets and liabilities (if any) at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results may vary
from the current estimates. These estimates are reviewed periodically and, as
adjustments become necessary, they are reported in operations in the periods in which
such adjustments become known. Financial statement items subject to management
estimate include revenue recognition, accrual of expenses, and the completeness of
accounts payable and accrued liabilities

(1)

Financial Instruments
ATC’s financial instruments include cash and accounts payable. Financial instruments are
initially measured at fair value when ATC becomes a party to the contractual provisions,
and are subsequently measured at amortized cost

-8-

ALUMNAE THEATRE COMPANY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30. 2013
3

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
The organization’s premises at 70 Berkeley Street, Toronto, and leasehold improvements and
additions thereto, with the exception of theatre equipment, are the property of the City of Toronto.
On behalf of the City of Toronto, a Board of Management operates the premises solely for the
activities and operations of Alumnae Theatre Company. The organization makes staff and funds
available to the Board of Management to allow it to carry out its fiduciary duties without cost to the
City of Toronto. Alumnae Theatre Company may levy and retain charges for the use of the
premises.
The Alumnae Theatre Company, at its own expense, has undertaken certain alterations and
improvements to the property. If the organization should have to abandon the premisies, under
certain circumstances the City of Toronto will reimburse the organization for the cost of these
leasehold improvements, to a maximum of $100,000 less accumulated amortization from October
15, 1972.

Cost

4

Theatre equipment
Leasehold improvements

$

Net book value

$

2013
jtuJated
‘A1i6rta1ieJ

76,89
110,
187 2

21.

4

Cost

2012
Accumulated
Ammortization

$

76,892 $
110.390
187,282 $
(163.499)

$

23.783

9.616
165.868

76,092
87,407
163,499

SPECIAL PURPOSE FUNDS
The board of directors of the Alumnae Theartre Company has designated certain funds raised for
scholarships and directors’ awards as “Special Purpose Funds”. It has also designated other
special funds as memorials.

5

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The carrying amounts of cash, and accounts payable and accrued liabilities approximate their fair
value due to the short-term nature of these financial instruments. It is management’s opinion that,
unless otherwise noted, ATC is not exposed to significant currency, interest rate or credit risks
arising from these financial instruments, except as otherwise noted.
Interest rate risk
The organization is exposed to interest rate risk arising from fluctuations in interest rates on its
bank deposits.
Liquidity risk
-9-
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30.2013
5

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
ATC is exposed to liquidity risk to the extent that it must meet its financial obligations as these fall
due. ATC’s approach to managing liquidity risk is to ensure that it has sufficient cash and other
current financial assets to meet its obligations when due, without incurring unacceptable losses or
damage to the its reputation. Management forecasts cash flows to identify financing requirements.
These requirements are then addressed through cash management. As at June 30, 2013, ATC
had accounts payable and accrued liabilities of $8,000 due within twelve months.
Credit risk
Cash is deposited with a major Canadian chartered bank. Management does not believe that the
organization is subject to any significant credit risk in this regard.
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Alumnae Theatre Company
Membership Report for the 2013-14 Season
VP Membership, Ellen Green
Membership Statistics:
Currently we 121 members down from 136 members for the 2012-13 season.
6 Life Members 24 Supporting Members down from 27 91 Active Members down from 105
We had re-established the renewal deadline of September 30th but Carol McLennan,
Membership Secretary, was still chasing members into December. This was better than the
previous year when Carol was trying to get renewals into February. Carol suggests that she and
the VP Membership contact the final list of non renewers next season to ascertain the reasons
for leaving the club.
We have held 7 General Membership Meetings in addition to the AGM throughout the current season,
September 2013 June 2014 for a total of 8 meetings of the membership.
-

General Membership meetings which were held September 16th, 2013 October 29th, 2013, December
10th, 2013, January 13th, 2014, February 24th, 2014, April 1st, 2014, and May 12th, 2014, covered a
wide variety of subjects including detailed production reports, promotions and sneak previews for our
upcoming productions, discussions of finance, discussions of what we did well and of what needed to be
improved in our productions and in other aspects of our theatre. The meetings were well attended at
times and at others less so (18-25). Membership will continue to make an effort to have a specific focus
for each meeting and explore various possibilities to make meetings more relevant to the interests of
mem bers.
The December meeting was our Holiday Social, held in Tina McCulloch’s party room, a fun pot-luck
party with gifts for all and a variety of entertainment provided by our talented members The February
meeting included a celebration of Thorrablot, Breaking the Back of Winter, led by Mary Wentz with
special booze and biscuits. The May Concerns and Compliments meeting took place at Betty’s party
room due to theatre rental. Few members attended but the conversation was very valuable.
,

.

A Member Retention Strategy: Big sisters
The Big Sister initiative continued this season. This is a mentoring opportunity for experienced
members to be partnered with new members who would be assisted to learn the ins and outs of our
organization and specifically how to become active in the areas of their choice. New members receive
their invitation to be assigned a Big Sister in their membership package.
Membership matters have become a priority for not only the VP Membership portfolio, but for the
entire Board. The Board decided in the Special Meeting on Membership last year that there were many
issues and concerns that needed more time, attention and a broader focus. Getting more assistance in
running and performing the tasks associated with the activities of the Alumnae Theatre Company was
the topic of the first of a series of special Board meetings.
Website
We transferred our basic website over to Word Press to function for the season, but the whole website
is remains under construction. The Members portion and the Archives will be part of the new expanded
site in the 2014-15 season
Page 1 of 2

Communicating with members:
Our Alumination Newsletter was a vital instrument for announcing events and opportunities to
members and was sent out 7 times with e-blasts alerting members in between issues.
Many Thanks.
To Carol McLennan, Membership Secretary
Luckily, Carol will continue as Membership Secretary next season. Carol is a tireless volunteer who keeps
track of us all. Among her many duties, Carol maintains the always evolving membership list, monitors
dues payments, mails newsletters or other communication, or personally phones those without email.
Carol makes a point of keeping us aware of member news at the Alum, as well as of relevant matters of
interest within the theatre community. I’m so grateful for your commitment, Carol, your diligence and
your calm support at all times.
To Sandy Schneider and Catherine Spence who headed the Social Committee and who recruited
members to provide wonderful suppers for our meetings as well as lovely buffets for our opening nights.
Thanks to all who responded to Sandy and Catherine when called upon to help.
To Sara Goldvine The talented, Sara Goldvine continues to help us with developing our website She
kindly and patiently to teaches members the Mail Chimp program arid more. Thank you, Sara for
finding time for us in your very busy work and home schedule.
.

To: Catherine Spence, Archivist
As Phase Two of the City’s renovations to our theatre is shortly beginning Catherine’s work on the
Archives continues to be of vital importance. Thank you, Catherine for so lovingly compiling the records
of our history as well as your diligent work on our behalf on the renovation. Doors Open Toronto was a
resounding success due to Catherine’s energy and determination. Thank you, Catherine!
To: Barbara Larose
To define Barbara’s current job description as President is an impossible task. Don’t bother looking
at any administrative binder, only a small fragment of what she does will be there. Her
workload continues to expand as if her role were made of unbreakable elastic.
When there is a task or project that has no volunteer to do it, Barbara has been there to
undertake it. Most don’t know all that you are doing for us, Barbara, and we will work to
increase our volunteer numbers so we can spread out the responsibilities and so that
your load next season will not be as onerous the last. Thank you is simply not enough.
Respectfully submitted by: Ellen Green June 8th, 2014
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Report of the Archivist 20 13/2014
The Archives maintain a permanent record of Alumnae Theatre Company productions as well as
materials relating to the Company’s history and to any of its buildings.
Production records include, programs, reviews and publicity materials. Production material
(Stage Manager’s books, sound and light cue sheets and sound cds are also kept if available. We
have some archival videotapes and dvds of individual productions and we welcome donations of
other production related artifacts (set maquettes and costume drawings for example). Please
leave materials for each production in the Theatre Manager file at the Box Office or contact me
directly if you have any questions about what should be included. As always if you have any
materials in your personal collections which you no longer wish to keep and consider relevant to
the Archives I would love to hear from you.
—

We usually have wonderful high quality publicity photographs for our shows but we would
appreciate copies of snapshots of sets, costumes, rehearsals etc. to give us a more complete
visual record. Please consider sending the Archives a copy of your production photographs in
either hard copy or in electronic form.
Please try to alert me (and the show’s producer if the show is still running) of any online reviews
you might find. We tend to get more reviews online than we get in print! (I try to search
“Alumnae Theatre” in “Mooney on Theatre” and “Stage Door” fairly regularly but I am sure that
there are other review sites and blogs that I might miss so please send me links if you see
anything interesting).
Archival materials are available for research into past productions. As we “count down” to our
hundredth anniversary (2019/2020) this is becoming even more important. This year we had the
loan of some lovely photographs from Judy Darragh. These were taken at our earlier 1967
production of “The Underpants” when she played the role of Luise Maske (played by Carolyn
Hall in last year’s production).
“Doors Open Toronto” what a fantastic festival we had this year! We practically quadrupled
th
our regular attendance close to 900 over the day and a half period (Saturday, May 24
and the
th)
25
afternoon of Sunday, May
This was, I must admit, largely due to “Haunted Walk” ending
their walking tour at the Alumnae every Vz hour at least 15 people would come in after each
tour. The theme for the Festival this year was “Secrets and Spirits...” so we shared some of our
ghost stories for the promotional material and had our own very special program. Stacy Halloran
directed a staged reading of “Join the Club” written for the 2009 Write Now festival by Suzanne
Courtney and Leora Courtney-Wolfman. Some of you may have seen this play when it was
presented as part of NIF 2010. Having some adjunct programming as part of Doors Open was a
great idea and should be considered for future festivals. We had joint publicity with the Old
Town Toronto BIA. I think this is the first time we have appeared in a TTC shelter poster! We
also had our 2014/2015 season brochures to distribute it’s great to have them ready so early!
Thank you to everyone who contributed to this event. We even had some additional folks come
to join us on the day. Please see the appended list of Volunteers and Production Team!
—

—

-

—

As I have a link from the Alumnae’s website I occasionally get e-mail from members of the
public looking for information about our shows (or our rental shows!) I try to help when I can. I
also continue to consult the Archives as part of the Accessibility Project (more on this in the
Theatre Manager’s Report).
Robin Whittaker continues his work with our history project. He comes to Toronto from
Fredericton (where he is Assistant Professor of Dramatic Literature and Dramatic Production in
the Department of English at St. Thomas University) a couple of times a year and is able to
continue with his research using our files and other Toronto resources. I will keep you all up to
date about this exciting project.
For next year I would like to continue consolidating and tidying the Archives area in lower
Trinity and explore ways to preserve our online presence by making retrospective program
information available on our website in some way. If anyone is interested in helping with either
of these projects please let me know. I would also like to start some kind of project to celebrate
th
our (rapidly approaching) 100
anniversary (our 20 19/2020 season).
Again please contact me if you wish to see any archival material and I will be happy to arrange
it for you.
-

Many thanks to everyone who has contacted me this year with material for the Archives.
Respectfully Submitted
Catherine Spence, Archivist

Doors Open Toronto
Production Team “Join the Club”
Playwrights: Suzanne Courtney and Leora Courtney-Wolfman
Director: Stacy Halloran
Cast: Justen Bennett
Anne-Marie Krytiuk
Scott Moulton
Tim O’Connell
Volunteers for Alumnae Theatre Company
Beverley Atkinson
Ramona Baillie
Rhona Bennett
Phoebe Cleverley
Ellen Green
Seema Lakhani
Carol Libman
Anne MacMillan
Tina McCulloch
Naomi Priddle-Hunter
Sandra Schneider
Martha Spence
Margaret Spence
Michael Spence
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Report of the Catering Committee
The Catering Committee was run cooperatively this year. Catherine Spence organized
volunteers and moderated discussion about menus while Sandra Schneider provided menu
suggestions, sage advice, great kitchen parties and is a wonderful cook!!
We also want to thank the bar team who was such a great help running the bar for our
Membership and Public Events. Thank you especially to Shelley for all your help setting up
opening night receptions!
While we organized the first meeting on our own (with help from known catering people
thank you!) we used a different model to organize events throughout the year. I would have
a number of sign-up sheets related to two or three of the closest events available at each
meeting so I could start with some volunteers for each event. We would then form an email
thread for each event to discuss menus and set up plans.
—

Sandra and I usually took care of making sure there were sufficient supplies at the theatre,
setting up cooking space if needed and making sure someone would be at the theatre early
enough to let people in.
Membership Meetings:
• Our first Members Meeting took place at Betty’s (because of construction at Alum).
• Tuesday, October 29th Members Meeting
• The December social was, as usual, a potluck. Wonderful contributions for the party
held at Tina’s condo party room.
• Tuesday, January 14th Members Meeting
• Monday, February 24th Members Meeting
• Tuesday, April 1st, Members Meeting (Led by the three producers from the Rabbit
Hole Producers team thank you!)
We were joined by the Rabbit Hole cast and crew who were teching that night.
• Concerns and Compliments meeting was held at Betty’s on Wednesday, May 15th.
—

Opening Nights:
• Opening receptions for all of our shows, The Underpants, Lady’s Not for Burning and
Rabbit Hole.
• Also closing night party for Fireworks, and;
• Three receptions for three weeks of NIF (coordinated by Catherine as Sandra was
expecting the imminent arrival of her first grandchild!)
A couple of recommendations:
1) We organized a total of 11 events this year, seven with a public component. This is a lot
of work! We would like to recommend that we return to our former practice of having
opening night receptions organized by the individual producers (or delegates). The
Catering Committee would be in charge of Membership meetings only. It would also be
great if we could start the year with a list of people who were willing to help with
contributions for Membership events. We could also assemble a list of people who would

be able to volunteer to help Producers with Opening Night Reception contributions. I am
sure many people would join the group as the year goes on but it would help to have a
group to begin the process!
We were also able to organize donations for some of our events The Healthy Road, No
Frills, and Perfectly Planted gave donations. Also the Pickle Barrel gave us a discount on
sandwiches for NIF and The Little Hut café did the same for a cake for one of our events.
The sandwiches were very popular by the way- we were asked about them when they did
not appear at a later reception!
The coordination of Bar with Catering got off to a bit of a slow start. Sometimes there can
be logistical problems with space and stock but it all works out on the day! Perhaps it
would be a good idea to include the Bar in our organizational email threads. I will try this
next year for the Membership events.
Sandra is currently having discussions with a chef who might be able to cater some of our
meetings there is also the possibility of bringing in food trucks. We will keep you up to
date on this.
—

Thank you so much to everyone who volunteered to help out at our Member and
Production events last year. Please do not hesitate to let Sandra or myself know if you have
any ideas as to how we could make our events work better, or if you would like to help out
with any aspect of the catering.
Thanks again!
Sandra Schneider and Catherine Spence
Catering Coordinators.
Catering Helpers:
Beverly Atkinson
Rhona Bennett
Sandra Burley
Brenda Darling
Tara Gostling
Tabitha Keast
Carol Libman
Pat McCarthy
Margaret Spence
Deana Wilkins

Ramona Baillie
Joan Burrows
Norma Crawford
Francine Dick
Stacy Halloran
Donna Langevin
Anne MacMillan
Roz Sherrard
Martha Spence

A collective thanks to all the Producers, FOH Managers, Box Office and Bar folks for help
with set up and clean-up for Opening Night Receptions.
Another big shout out to all who contributed to the pot-luck.
Apologies to anyone accidentally omitted we sincerely appreciate all your help!
-
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REPORT OF THE VP EXECUTIVE PRODUCER, JUNE 2014

Submitted by: Brenda Darling
Executive Producer
Having someone in this role this past Season has meant that someone had a Producer’s
perspective on the Season’s Productions as a whole rather focusing on an individual show or
festival. As a result, first aid supplies were purchased for all of the emergency boxes in the
building; old paint cans were opened and nearly 50 were thrown out; a pest control company
fumigated the wardrobe; the washer and dryer were resurrected; set pieces from one show
were set aside for re-use next season by Escape From Happiness; mutual production concerns
were discussed with one of our regular renters; research for a Trillium grant to upgrade the
Studio theatre began; a roster of production personal is growing; a trash bin has been ordered
and major spring clear-out Blitz is planned prior to the city renovations of the lobby.
It has also meant there is a central coordination of initiatives in the production departments
(wardrobe, props) and departments focused on audience (marketing).

Wardrobe
Bec Brownstone was the costume designer for all 3 FireWorks productions; Margaret Spence
was designer for The Lady’s Not For Burning and this department provided resources and
costumes for the non-member designers of The Underpants, The Rabbit Hole and the 15 New
Ideas Festival scripts.
Bec sorted through most of the wardrobe room, becoming familiar with all the materials and
costumes in our inventory
She, Barbara Blonska and Margaret threw out a large quantity of garments infested with
moths
Brenda Darling orchestrated a moth defumigation with pest control specialists
The clothes washer was put into working order.
Barbara Blonska replied to wardrobe rental inquiries and supervised its rental and return.
-

-

-

-

-

-

Props (separate report will be read at AGM)
Razie Brownstone and Tess Handaoui went through the props department and organized it,
throwing out items that are unlikely to be useful.
-

Front of House Management
The Season’s FOH Management Team Supervisor was Lara Mrkoci, and the FOH Managers
were Tina McCulloch, Pat Hawk, Rhonda Parto, Lara Mrkoci, Melissa Chetty, and Mary Wentz. In
the fall they reviewed and revised procedures including processing of online ticket
reservations.
In the fall, Jennifer Oliver, her husband and Lara compiled diverse FOH instruction sheets,
sample tickets, contact numbers, emergency procedures and accounting forms into one 3-ring
binder which now remains at the box office for reference.
A review of procedures was conducted prior to the January production of A Lady’s Not For
Burning, and the reference material was updated to reflect any changes.
-

-

-

Digital Strategy
Sara Goidvine, our digital strategist, managed our website, provided training and mailed out
-

e-flyers.
The old ATC website was moved from HTML to Wordpress, keeping much of the previous
design.
Through informal and formal discussions with members, the requirements and preferences for
a new website were determined
An RFP with technical specifications and wireframe (ie: layout of headings, sub-headings) was
created.
Over 2,000 e-addresses of audience members, ATC Members and artists were moved from
word and excel files into a database in Wordpress.
For FireWorks, New Ideas, Rabbit Hole and Big Ideas, Sara trained members to upload bios,
headshots, releases and reviews to the show page.
For the first time in several years, e-flyers were consistently sent to our audience and artist
database.
For the first time in several years, audition notices were regularly sent to performers who had
previously auditioned for or acted in one of our productions.
-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Marketing and Promotions
Gillian English was the new Marketing Director this Season. Many more Members took a share
of responsibility in this area this Season. There was a Marketing Committee: Barbara Larose,
Ellen Green, Brenda Darling and Carolyn Zapf who were involved in the creation of production
materials, next season’s brochure and, in conjunction with Sara Goldvine, future website design.
In addition, Tina McCulloch was the very active administrator of our social media campaigns:
We have a Facebook “Page” devoted to events in the building. From the Page, Tina creates an
“Event” on Facebook for each production, as well as for events like Write Now and Big Ideas.
Alumnae Theatre also has a blog on Wordpress, where Tina blogs about first read-throughs,
rehearsals, opening nights, news related to members, etc. Check out the blog at
http://alumnaetheatre.worderess.com/ Tina is also active on Twitter. Check out the Alumnae
Twitter account and follow at @alumnaetheatre.
Uploading of promotional material on our website for individual shows was provided by Sara
Goldvine, Carolyn Zapf, June Rogers, Dahlia Katz, Carine Coslo and Chloe Whitehorn. Tweeting
for NIF by June Rogers augmented our traditional social media campaigns and provided insight
into what more is possible in this area.
Before the season began, we lost our long time Web Goddess and Graphic Designer Suzanne
Courtney, who retired from the position. One of Gillian’s biggest contributions to the Marketing
and Promotions mandate was the introduction of a new Graphic Designer this season Mikaela
Dyke, who made us effective posters and e-materials for all of the season except New Ideas.
She also voluntarily guided the Marketing Committee and the Board to restate our Mission
Statement.
—

How else do we get the word out?
•
•
•

We continue to use our lobby windows to advertise our Season and will be using the
new space even more effectively post renovation.
We continue to send a press release/s for each show to our large list of media outlets.
We do reciprocal program stuffing with other theatres CanStage, Amicus Productions,
Village Playhouse, etc. to expand our audience.
-

Si
•

•
•

This Season each show had the option of a 1/5 page colour
ad in NOW magazine in the
first week of its run. In return for a “sponsor” rate, we run an
ad for NOW in our
mainstage programs. We only used this for a couple of shows
this Season and are
considering our options as to whetheror not to continue this
next season.
A listing for eachshow is submitted to an extensive mailing
list of various media outlets,
print and on-line publications, plus posted on various websites.
This Season we did not do our usual poster and bookmark
distribution but left it to the
casts and crews of the individual productions. This may have
resulted in lower
attendance at some events and we will take a close look at the
numbers for next Season
to determine what our approach should be.

Ticketing
Until recently, if our patrons wanted to purchase tickets with
a credit card, their only option was
via the website of T.O. Tix. But thanks to Brenda Darling and
Lynne Patterson they can now
book with online ticketing system Arts People, from our own websit
e. Tickets can still be
reserved by phone or e-mail, and cash paid at Box Office.
Countdown to 100 Marketing Campaign
The Alumnae Theatre Company turned 96 in February of 2014.
We are not, apparently, the
oldest continuously-producing company in Canada Ottawa
th
Little Theatre trumpeted their 100
season with an article in Maclean’s last September. But we’re right
o
1
oth
behind them our
will
th
be in February 2018, and every year since our 90
we’ve been remounting a play from our past.
We’ll officially celebrate our lOO season in 2018/2019, and
present Moliere’s LES FEMMES
SAVANTES, or THE BLUES TOCKINGS, which was Alumnae Theatr
e’s very first production, in
February 1918.
—

—

The Season
2013/14 Season was a great production year at the Alumnae Theatr
e with many successes and a
first for our new FireWorks event.
The Underpants, by Carl Sternheim, adapted by Steve Martin
ran from September 20 to October
5, 2013 on our Mainstage.

The premiere of our FireWorks series presented 3 original full length
plays in repertory,
Measure of the World, by Shirley Barrie; Gloria’s Guy byioan
Burrows; and Theory by Norman
Yeung and ran from November 13 to December 1, 2013 in our
Studio Theatre.
The Lady’s Not For Burning by Christopher Fry ran from Januar
y 24
mainstage.

—

February 8, 2014 on the

The New Ideas Festival 2014 ran in the Studio Theatre from March
12— 30, 2014.
Rabbit Hole by David Lindsay-Abaire which ran from April 11

—

26, 2014 on our Main stage.

Alumnae Theatre’s 2013/2014
Programming Committee Report
Submitted by:

Chantale Groulx, Programming Chair

Members- on and off:

Seema Lakhani, Barbara Larose, Ellen Green, Chantale Groulx,
Alyssa Cartlidge, Joanne Williams, Shelley Cahill Margot Devlin
and Melissa Chetty

The Year in Review:
The programming committee this year was made up of returning
members: Barbara, Ellen, Seema, Alyssa and Chantale with
addition of four new faces: Joanne, Shelley, Margot and Melissa.
June through to October the committee read twenty-three plays,
lost two members- Joanne and Margot, but the seven remaining
members enjoyed hearty discourse and came up with a season
I’m sure we’ll all love. One of the changes that we made this year
was the timing of the committee. It used to begin in September,
but by moving back to begin in June, we benefit by having our
brochure regarding our season out sooner and at the same time
as the other Theatres in Toronto.

The Program and the Directors for 2014/2015:
The season starts with George F. Walker’s ‘Escape From Happiness’ directed by Andrea
Wasserman, who came highly recommended by Ginette Mohr, who’d directed ‘The
Underpants’ in 2013.
Then we follow the escape trail to ‘Blood Relations’ by Sharon Pollock, directed by our own
Barbara Larose.
The finale belongs to our own playwright, Shirley Barrie and her new play: ‘I am Marguerite’
also directed by a member- Molly Thom.

Money: The cost of photocopying scripts was approximately: $85.00. There was more to be
charged however, I covered that cost.

Accomplishment:
We decided to create a file that would begin in 2014 for the collection of information on
directors. This will help us a great deal when we are seeking directors for the future.

Programming Committee 2014/2015:
Returning members, so far, include: myseif-Chantale, Seema, Barbara, Ellen, Melissa, Shelley
and perhaps moreI
If you would like to join our mad reading team please contact Chantale Groulx for more
information. And, of course, we welcome suggestions for our reading list, be they single titles or
the name of the playwright. My email address is cng.boniour@sympatico.ca
I look forward to seeing you all again next season.
Happily submitted by Chantale Groulx

I

New Ideas Festival 2014 Report
to the Alumnae Theatre AGM, June 8, 2014
Thanks to all the ATC members who enthusiastically participated in New Ideas Festival 2014 and helped
to make it a great success. A special thanks to the Reading Committee who chose an exciting program of
plays, to associate producer June Rogers who created a buzz with a Twitter campaign, and to Catherine
Spence and Sandy Schneider who organized an opening night reception for each ofthe 3 weeks.

Highlights of New Ideas Festival 2014
PARTICIPATION
• Altogether, 125 people participated in NW 2014.
• An effort was made to increase the participation of ATC members in the festival. Of the 15 plays
produced, 6 were written by members; 6 of 15 directors were ATC members.
• NIF continues to serve as an outreach for the ATC, attracting the participation of many actors,
directors, and technical people from the Toronto theatre community (especially young, emerging
artists), some of whom have joined the club again this year.
ASSISTANT DIRECTOR PROGRAM
Four (4) directors in the 2014 festival had completed the NIF ADSM program established
3 years ago.
PRODUCTION NOTES
• NiP 2014 held 6 performances of the productions each week, continuing the popular Sunday
matinees, and 1 performance of the workshopped reading.
• Productions and readings were well received, and many audience members commented about the
high quality of the festival this year. One reading, “Radical,” developed over the NIF rehearsal
period, will be produced at the 2014 Toronto Fringe Festival. Two of the 2014 shows are being
considered for other festivals and programs.
• NW had to replace several directors this year, which caused some difficulty.
FINANCIAL SUMMARY
Despite the cold and icy weather this year, NW 2014 reports a surplus of $9,469.59.
Total Revenue: $12,155.25
Total Expenses: $ 2,685.66
Surplus:
$ 9,469.59
With a 78-seat capacity in the Studio, the total seating capacity for 18 shows and 3 readings is 1638.
Total combined attendance was 1022 (62.39% of the house).
Total attendance at the 3 readings was 125 (53.41% of the house); total attendance at the 3 weeks of
productions (6 shows per week 18 shows) was 897 (63.88% of the house).
Ten-Year Historical Comparison (excerpted from production reports)
Year
Attendance
% of House
Surplus (Loss)
NIP 2014
1022
62.39%
$ 9,469.59
NIP 2013
1260
75.00%
$10,398.99
NW 2012
1246
76.07%
$ 9,949.34
NIF2O11
987
76.16%
$ 5,325.63
NIP 2010
1179
90.97%
$ 7,259.65

2
NW 2009
NIF 2008
NIF 2007
N1F2006
NIF 2005
NIF 2004

1089
924
1026
1149
1280
1259

78.57%
66.00%
62.64%
72.54%
79.01%
77.72%

$
$
$
$
$
$

4,601.53
4,210.25
4,018.52
4,865.65
7,156.67
2,747.39

DISCUSSION
• Attendance in 2014 was lower compared to 2013 (238 fewer audience members), resulting in lower
revenue. Several factors influencing the drop in attendance this year include the icy/stormy weather
conditions, less publicity (with the absence of the Alumnae Marketing Director and a transitional
website), and competing events.
• Play submissions were also lower this year. Factors influencing this decrease include the larger
number of organizations/festivals accepting new scripts in Toronto and resistance to submission fees
among the playwriting community. Releasing the call for scripts in July may also have been a factor,
as playwrights may need more preparation time before the submission deadline.

Ideas and Plans for NIF 2015
Some areas we plan to explore and develop next year include:
Play Submissions
• Target the Cailfor Scripts more closely to local playwrights and playwriting communities and
schools.
• Develop links and encourage submissions from Toronto’s diverse communities.
• Eliminate the script submission fee for non-members.
• Publicize the Califor Scripts earlier, beginning in May, and promote it through social media.
Festival Organisation/Production
• Have the Reading Committee choose 3 back-up plays to hold in reserve; these plays will also be
read at the Cold Reads.
• Reinstate letters of agreement for playwrights and directors.
• Hold discussionlpanel on the director-writer relationship and rehearsal protocol.
• Make a special effort to increase the number of ATC members cast.
Marketing and Publicity
• Expand social media marketing, building on the success of the 2014 Twitter campaign.
• Ensure distribution of print material (postcards/posters), including targeted distribution (for
example, the university theatres).
• Develop a comp list for NIF opening night to build audience.
• Continue to support the creation of an ATC audience, casts, and crew database.
Website
• Upgrade and expand the NIF pages of the website so they can serve as general information about
NW year round.

—Report submitted by Carolyn Zapf, Pat McCarthy, Jennifer McKinley, and June Rogers

SUBSCRIPTIONS REPORT
for Alumnae Theatre Company’s 201312014 season
submitted by Lynne Patterson
AGM Sunday June 8, 2014
-

Subscriptions continue to fall.
Income was down to $3,499 (last year it was $3,785). The cost of stationary, mailings was paid by Subscriptions Manager.
There were 49 paying subscribers (last year 51) of which afew were only % year subscribers, plus 5 free subscriptions
through donations to charity events.
4 of our subscribers made donations with their subscription payment totaling $110 (last year $150).
Donations to charity events.
Recipients included Princess Margaret Hospital, Amnesty International Canada, Foundry Theatre and several different
organizaons raising money for the United Way. Not all were claimed.
Only two people who received donation tickets in previous years were paid subscribers for the 2013/14 season. Most do
not become subscribers, but we have no way of knowing if they continue to be patrons at individual shows.
Alumnae members are welcome to request subscription or ticket donaons for other organizations or events it helps to
spread the word.
-

Arts People Ticket System
New this year, subscribers could buy online, but only 5 did, probably as it was not well advertised. For next season, it is on
the brochures. Several did take advantage of this for NIF.
Efforts to promote subscriptions
No additional special promotions or distribution of the brochures were done this year.
Five new subscribers did take advantage of the offers on the back of the programs.
Subscribers (and subscribers from the two previous seasons) were emailed regularly about upcoming shows. We also
offered current subscribers invitations to additional Alumnae events, e.g. Big Ideas, and some member events.
The main reason subscribers do not renew is that although they considered the quality and selection of plays very good,
they did not have time to go to all the shows, so thought it was not worth having a subscription. Next season, flexpasses
will replace subscriptions, which should increase sales.
The brochures for 2014/15 season will be mailed, as soon as the Alumnae website is ready, to current subscribers,
encouraging them to buy the new passes. Past subscribers will receive an email about the season.
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Report of the Vice President

—

Theatre Manager/Chair, Board of Management
2013/2014

The Alumnae Theatre is managed for the City of Toronto by Board
a
of Management currently
consisting of myself as Chair, PJ Hammond as Secretary/Treasurer
and Shelley Cahill as
Member for the Alumnae Theatre Company. Pam McConnell,
our City Councilor has also been
a member of the Board of Management and is currently represented
at our meetings by Glenn
Gustafson. Administrative and legal changes continue regard
ing our relationship with the City.
As these changes are still in development I cannot provide details
as yet but the basic
arrangement (Alumnae maintains 72 Berkeley Street as a theatre
and manages it without cost to
the City) will remain the same.
Work was completed on the first phase of the City of Toronto’s
accessibility project last summer.
This phase of the work saw the reconfiguration of our backst
age area to accommodate space for
three washrooms (one of them accessible) as well as the creatio
n of new doors for the
auditorium, one coming in from the parking lot and the other
opening from the auditorium to the
washroom corridor. This substantial improvement to our amenit
ies has been greatly appreciated
by our audiences. As with all construction projects this did not
come without attendant
scheduling difficulties and a bit of a learning curve as we all learned
to deal with reconfigured
space and figure out where the light switches were (more on
this later). The work was fmished
(just in time) for the opening of our first production for the
season “The Underpants”. We had a
construction theme for the opening night party! Thank you to
everyone for your patience in
dealing with last year’s project (and an advance thank you for
bearing with the work scheduled
for this summer). I want to especially thank PJ Hammond
and Angus Barlow for their help
making communications and scheduling smoother as our season
approached and all the members
of the committee, Barbara Larose, PJ Hammond, Shelley Cahill,
Michael and Catherine Spence
and Molly and Adam Thom who continue to address issues raised
by the accessibility project
from the Alumnae side.
One more thing we had to have a massive clean-up in prepar
ation for the construction project.
Please see the list of helpers appended to this report! There
will be a few similar projects coming
up this summer as we (among other tasks) clean out the “Alice
Room” prior to the start of
construction. Please consider helping out you can be on a similar
list next year!
—

—

The City is planning further work for this summer that will
see the lowering of the upper lobby
to the same level as the lower lobby to allow all persons to have
front door access to the building
through the same door.
Discussion has been ongoing regarding the lowering of our
upper lobby space. To quote again
from Barbara’s note sent to our membership by email this
March:
The goal of making buildings accessible to all is one we certain
ly appreciate but it can be
a challenge in a Heritage building such as ours whose exterior
architecture and interior
design is so important for us to preserve. The 1972 renovation
which created our theatre
space and which was designed by renowned architect, Ron Thom,
is a part of our

history... So it’s doubly important to us that the accessibility renovations be done with
sensitivity and care.
While the decision has been made to go ahead with the lowering of the upper lobby space the
committee is still very much involved and is attempting to see that the resulting space works for
our public and membership programming purposes and that the aesthetics of the spaces are as
unified as possible.
With the accessibility project we will again be losing access to our on-site parking at the Alum. I
will advise you of any changes regarding the availability of the parking spaces. Perhaps this will
give me an opportunity to investigate finding day rentals for the parking spaces. In the meantime
thanks to PJ, Angus and the City of Toronto for monitoring (and occasionally towing) people
who park for lengthy times in our spaces andlor block our vehicles.

We have dealt with our usual maintenance issues including increasing the service for pest control
(as in moths!) window cleaning and AC/furnace maintenance.
We had a huge amount of snow to deal with this year! Thanks once again to the snow removing
elves (Angus, Tina, Kathryn Binnersley, Margot Devlin (and friends) and I am sure several
others) who helped with clearing paths for our audience (and production people) on snowy
evenings and put out salt when necessary. Thank you all!
We have recycling pick up as well as garbage collection and our group of volunteers (Stacy
Halloran, P3 Hammond, Tina McCulloch and myself) took turns last year collecting
garbage/recycling and putting it out for collection. We appreciate the help we get with the
garbage from our own Production people when productions are in progress and from our Rental
supervisors if there is a rental in the building. Once again, thank you everyone for your
generosity when dealing with rentals in our building. Renting our building allows us to cover
our building expenses so it is really important that they operate smoothly. Thanks are due to our
Rental Supervisors, Angus Barlow, Arizona Dixon and Chris Humphries.
I want to take this opportunity to thank Michael Spence for his help throughout the year. We all
benefit from his experience with the care of our heritage building and his willingness to serve as
a resource for us. I also want to thank Angus Barlow for all the assistance he gives us as our
Building Maintenance Supervisor.
One of the projects that Michael helped with was obtaining quotes for the renovation of our other
washrooms (so that they will be comparable to the standard set by the new lobby washrooms)!
Bogard Renovation Services will be renovating the Studio washroom this summer. If all goes
well they will do the Trinity and Dressing Room washrooms as well. We are also thinking of
converting the unused “servery” area in Trinity into another washroom.
A big thank you to Bill Scott who retrofitted our lobby chandelier over the holidays last year. It
has been dusted and has received upgraded installation hardware. Bill and Michael also did
some work on our rather temperamental crash bar on the Adelaide Door!
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Once again, my thanks to everyone who lends a hand with maintaining the theatre putting out
the garbage and recycling on collection evening, putting salt on icy walkways, helping with the
vacuuming and retrieving the incoming mail. Please be assured that it is noticed and
appreciated!
-

Next year I would like to get more people involved with the maintenance of our lovely heritage
building. I am going to put a list of small tasks together maybe we can have a couple of
“Maintenance Parties” It’s always more fun to do things in a group. It would also be great to get
more people into the “Garbage Committee” this year. We might be able to work in pairs (faster)
or not have to come in as often.
—

I have been asked to give a short report for our Building Renewals Chair, Margaret Spence. She
had planned this year to restore the tears in the lobby wallpaper that were made when a dust
drape was attached to the paper with tape during Phase 1 of the Accessibility Project. This work
will be done next year if it is not dealt with as part of Phase 2 of the project. Since wainscoting
to protect the lobby wallpaper in the washroom corridor turns out not to be within the scope of
Phase 2 Margaret plans to go forward with designing this feature. Besides being an attractive
feature for the wall (by the Lobby washrooms) it will prevent the wallpaper from receiving any
further damage from the tables that are stored there.
Respectfully Submitted,
Catherine Spence,
Vice President-Theatre Manager
Alumnae Member Clean Up Crew for 2013 Accessibility Project Construction
Brenda Darling
Francine Dick
Pat Hawk
Juliana Hodgson
Tina McCulloch
Kay Montgomery
Kay Randewich
Sandy Schneider
Pam Thomson
Also thanks to Angus Barlow and all the other helpers!
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ALUMNAE THEATRE
REPORT ON RENTALS
July 2013 to June 2014

Our second year as Rentals Co-Managers has been another succes
sful one, both logistically and
financially. We both agree that having two people do this job is
not only very workable, but
necessary. There is no way either of us could handle it alone, chiefly
because of time constraints.
And in fact, we are delighted to welcome Rhona Bennett as a third
member of the rentals team.
Rhona wifi be assisting Andy with inquiries and learning that side
of the rentals process.
On average, Andy has fielded three to four rental inquiries per
month this year, significantly
fewer than last year’s monthly average of ten. Many of these
are new renters; they are looking
for space for productions either in the very near future or next
season. However, most have
been unable to rent with us because we are actually quite heavily
booked (see the attached
occupancy chart), which has been compounded by the renovation
schedule. But we believe they
will try to book at the Alumnae again, once the City has compl
eted its work. Everyone who
calls or e-mails is very understanding about availabifity (or
lack thereof), knowing that we have
our own productions, as well as construction schedules.
In 2013/2014, Susan negotiated nine contracts for the Main Stage
and four for the Studio. (In
2012/ 2013, there were 13 contracts for the Main Stage and five
for the Studio.) These include
several regular renters who come back year after year: Alexan
der Showcase Theatre, Bravo
Academy, Gay Play Day, InspiraTO Festival, and Toronto Irish
Players. These renters provide a
stable basis both for management of the theatre and for projection
of income.
This past year, there have been tricky overlaps between renters
and Alumnae productions to be
negotiated. This was particularly true in the fall of 2013 when Firewo
rks was in rehearsal and
performance in the Studio at the same time that Alexander and
Bravo were on the Main Stage.
With a considerable amount of planning and significant goodwill
on all sides, any potential
problems were identified well ahead of time and agreeable solutio
ns negotiated. We now have
proven, workable arrangements in place to use in the fall of
2014 when the same occupants will
be in the theatre at the same times.
Recently, one of our renters drew our attention to certain issues
at the theatre related to work
place health and safety. Catherine Spence and Brenda Darling
instituted temporary measures to
address these concerns in time for the renter’s arrival and are
planning to follow up with more
permanent solutions.
The new Ontario Health and Safety Act (OHSA) puts unequivocal
onus on employers and
supervisors to ensure that all workplaces are up to standard, that
all workers are aware of any
health and safety issues/hazards, and that all workers are
fully informed of their rights. In
addition, everyone who works anywhere is required to take the
free online training offered by
the Ministry of Labour (
).
In spite of the fact that we are all volunteers, Alumnae Theatr
e is a workplace, especially for the
rental supervisors. So this matter cannot be ignored.

1

(of
Here are the financial results for 2013/2014 (as well
as for the previous two fiscal years for
comparison):
Year-over-Year Comparison
2013-2014
Main Stage
No. of days rented
109
Rental Income
$28,380
2012-2013
Main Stage
No. of days rented
142
Rental Income
$33,460
2011-2012
Main Stage
No. of days rented
104
Rental Income
$24,400

Studio
29
$5,000
Studio
42
$7,320
Studio
35
$5,500

Totals
138
$33,380
184
$40,780
139
$29,900

Clearly, there were not as many rental days, and
therefore not as much income, in 2013/14 as
there were the previous year. While no penetratin
g analysis has been done to explain why this
is so, no doubt some of it is due to fact that the
theatre was closed for much of the summer of
2013 for the renovations to the lobby washrooms.
And of course, the theatre will also be
unavailable for rentals this summer as well.
However, as shown by the attached Alumnae Occu
pancy Chart for January to December 2014
(and taking the renovations into consideration),
the Main Stage is almost fully booked and the
Studio has significant blocks of availabffity only in
April and December.
Recommendations:
1. Because of the high level of demand for our spac
e, and because some of our priority renters
want to book the space two and three years in
advance, and because rentals contribute so
significantly to Alumnae’s bottom line, we encourag
e the executive and the members to
continue to plan future seasons and initiatives more
than one year in advance.
2. We recommend that, at a minimum, all board
members, department heads, and rental sup
er
visors complete the free online training at the web
address given above before July 1, 2014.
3. It seems fair to assume that demand for the
space will remain at the current level or perhaps
increase, and it obviously behooves Alumnae to
accommodate rentals wherever possible, as
long as our own endeavours are not compromised.
We therefore recommend that this
arrangement of having at least two Rentals Co-M
anagers be continued in order to make the
workload a reasonable one for volunteers.
In conclusion, we wish to extend our thanks to Barb
ara Larose for her continuing support and
guidance, to all our Alumnae colleagues for their
good wifi and co-operation (especially the
Rabbit Hole gang for going several extra miles in
order to strike in record time to make way for
a
renter), to all the rental supervisors (without who
m none of this would happen), and to each
other for being such good buddies in bringing
substantial revenues into Alumnae’s coffers.
Andy Fraser
Susan Q Wilson
8 June 2014
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Training & Development Report 201312014 Season
Seema Lakhani (seema.lakhanigmail.com)

Development for Actors I Performers

Open Stage
The 2013/2014 season was the second year for Open Stage. Open Stage was created
by member, Rae Kolbin who continued to coordinate the program this season (after a
successful first year).
Open Stage is a member focused initiative for actors (or anyone who wants to give
performance a try) an opportunity to get up on one of our Alumnae stages on a regular basis
and perform for a supportive audience of fellow members and performers.
Open Stage was offered once a month from October to May, usually on Monday
evenings. After a quick warm up, the first half usually consists of members doing short
performances (scenes or monologues) and the second half is a group activity. This past year we
covered dramatic readings of Les Miserables songs, Shakespeare, Fairy Tales, Bellydancing,
Impersonations, Scene Work, Commercials and playing with Genres of Theatre.
I’d like to extend a big thank you to Rae for starting this wonderful program and
coordinating it these past two years. We wish her the best as she goes back to school next
year. Next season, member Janet Kish will be taking on coordination of this program so it can
continue to grow and flourish.
Going forward as Open Stage gains more momentum, I’d recommend collaborations
with NPD and other parts of the Alumnae to expose and connect more members to the various
opportunities at the club.
Volunteer Training

CPR Training
This year, as part of the Alumnae’s ongoing commitment to health & safety, the club
offered free CPR training to 11 members who often serve in roles that oversee large groups of
people (e.g. stage managers, front of house managers, bar managers, producers, etc.).
Alumnae brought in a fantastic CPR trainer one Sunday in March to walk through a workshop
for our members. The event was a big success and allowed us to all feel better about handling a
health emergency at the theatre.
Going forward, I recommend to continue offering these courses periodically to members,
particularly those in supervisory roles.
Accessibility Training
The Ontario government has recently instituted the Accessibility for Ontarians with
Disabilities Act (AODA) which requires that all organizations’ staff and volunteers be properly
trained in communicating with and accommodating any individuals with disabilities.
In order to comply with this regulation as well as to ensure we are delivering the highest
quality of customer service when interacting with audiences, Catherine and I ran an accessibility

(Qq

training workshop? party in March 2014 with approximately 7 members in attendance. In addition
to these members, many members have already been trained through their workplaces or other
volunteer organizations.
I recommend continuing to offer these training workshops? parties whenever possible
when there are enough members who are missing the training.
Recommendations for Next Year
Production Training
As production related skills and volunteers are always scarce, I recommend offering a
couple of workshops in production-related tasks? roles (e.g. Producing, Lighting Design, Set
Design, Stage Managing) to help drive more volunteer participation.
Creative Development
Creative development and growth is continually cited as a key motivation for
membership. With Open Stage as a great development opportunity for performers and NPD for
writers, the next potential opportunity for creative development could be for aspiring and
emerging directors.

Audience Development AGM Report 2013/14
We tested ‘papering the house’ this season for our ‘main
stage’ shows.
We reached out to three groups: The Princess Margaret Hospit
al Volunteers, Ovarian Cancer
Canada Volunteers and the ‘No Empty Seats’ organization. They
were offered 20 comps for
each of the first 6 show dates excluding Sunday’s ‘pay what
you can’. Unfortunately we don’t
have statistics as they were included with our regular show
comps stats but I’m sure this can be
easily rectified for future shows. We do know comps were
used by each of the groups.
Member response was very positive to this initiative so it’s
a successful ‘first-step’.

Strategies for 2014/15
I’ve listed a few non-onerous strategies below that can be consid
ered and, hopefully,
accomplished next season:
Post-show conversations after every performance: Before the
show the producer, director or
one of the actors coaches the audience to explore questions
that come up for them during the
play. After the performance there is a discussion period.
Create a committee to define the demographic group we need
to pursue to expand our
audience base and determine what motivates that demographic.
Family programming: Test programs such as a Christmas
show or a summer production for kids
would enable families to enjoy our theatre together thus
easily expanding our audience base.
Develop more contest opportunities: Pursue more opportuni
ties with the Media (on-line, radio
shows, newspapers, ticket sellers, etc.) directed at our ideal
demographic groups.
Expand ‘papering the house’ opportunities: At present we offer
three organizations
complimentary tickets. Expand this group and establish
a simple system for box office
reporting.
Develop a relationship with colleges/universities/high school
s offering arts programs: Offer
group discounts and market potential training/ mentorship oppo
rtunities
Changing the building’s name back to the Firehall Theatre
as it was in 1972: Assemble a team
to study the rebranding of the building and how it can bene
fit our company.

Submitted by: Ramona Baillie / May 28, 2014

New Play Development Group AGM Report 2013/14
The Alumnae Theatre Company’s New Play Development Group (NPD)
continues to grow and to expand its offerings
showcasing material written by members. The group meets once a
month, except in July and August, and Members
bring scenes from scripts or short plays they’re working on to garner helpfu
l feedback from their peers. We currently
have 37 members on our mailing list and get 10 to 20 playwrights at
our regular meetings, with up to six readings at a
single meeting.
NPD playwrights have many opportunities to develop plays throug
h all stages with the Alumnae Theatre Company.
Members can have readings of scenes of first drafts, through multip
le drafts, of both short plays developed through
Write Now and full-length plays read at the Big Ideas reading festiva
l each year. They can submit scenes and short plays
to the New Ideas Festival, full-length scripts for production at Alumn
ae’s Fireworks and a ‘Pitch-a-Package’ for our Main
Stage Season.
In October, we hosted our annual weekend writing challenge, Write
Now. The challenge writing a 10-minute play in
43 hours inspired by a video and material from a 2009 exhibit in The
Grange at the AGO was set by NPD member Cate
Frid with Jane Carnwath organizing the readings for the following weeke
nd. 18 Alumnae writers signed up for the
challenge, titled ‘He Named her Amber’ and plays received staged reading
s in the Studio on Sunday 27 October 2013.
—

—

Three full-length plays were produced at the Alumnae’s FireWorks
Festival and two were by NPD members: Measure of
the World by Shirley Barrie and Glorias Guy by Joan Burrows. Next
season’s FireWorks has chosen plays from another
two NPD writers, Burying Toni by Cate Frid and You Have to Earn It
by Ramona Baillie and Maria Popoff.
Six of the 15 plays showcased in Alumnae’s 26th New Ideas Festiva
l from 12 to 30 March 2014 were penned by NPD
writers:
I’m Still Here by Ramona Baillie
In a Time of War by Anne MacMillan
Brockfest by Joan Burrows

Royal Seasons by Norma Crawford
The Living Library by Linda McCready
Airport Tale by Carol Libman

In the spring, NPD organized our annual readings of longer works, the
Big Ideas Reading Festival, from 13 to 17 May
2014 featuring eight works:
Divine Wrecks by Chloë Whitehorn
The Next Mary by Mairy Beam
The Cape by Ramona Baillie
Dragon Memories by Anne MacMillan

Airport Tales by Carol Libman
The Suit by Rhona Bennett
Violin for Sale by Donna Langevin
And a table read of Dressing Amelia by Chloë Whitehorn

At NPD events a collection is taken up. The money has been used to purcha
se music stands for readings for all Alumnae
Theatre members and to cover costs of photocopying scripts for readers
at NPD events. The NPD even used some funds
to purchase new carpeting for the Studio entrance area.
We look forward to another creative and productive year!

Submitted by: M.P. Fedunkiw, NPD Coordinator! May 28, 2014
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• FireWorks AGM Report 2013/14
Through the efforts of members Brenda Darling, Carolyn Zapf, Molly Thom, Ramona
Baillie, Jane Carnwath, Catherine Frid and Diane Forrest the Alumnae launched the
exciting new FireWorks festival this season with Dahlia Katz at the helm. This
festival was created to showcase original full-length plays that evolve through the
Alumnae’s New Play Development Group or New Ideas Festival and to offer
audiences a glimpse into the playwriting and staging process.
V

Three plays were produced in rep over a three-week period Gloria’s Guy by Joan
Burrows, Measure of the World by Shirley Barrie and Theory by Norman Yeung.
Sunday round-table sessions on subjects related to each show were offered and a
‘Playwrights Speak’ session where the playwrights discussed their script’s journey
from inception to production wrapped up the festival.
-

Not only was the event a critical success but it also netted a surplus for the Alumnae
of $1,024.31.
There were some kinks with marketing and ticketing but these, among other issues
always associated with a new venture, will be addressed next season.
Two plays have been selected for our 2014/15 season that originated from the New
Play Development group Burying Toni by Catherine Frid and You Have to Earn It by
Ramona Baillie. The production team is already hard at work!
-

—
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Alumnae Theatre Company
Report of the Nominations Committee

-

2014/2015 Season

For Presentation at Annual General Meeting, June 2014
•.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

POSITION

Incumbent

Nomineels

President

Barbara Larose

Barbara Larose

Past President*

Vacant

Position will be vacant in the 2014/2015
Season

VP Membership

Ellen Green

Seema Lakhani

VP Executive Producer

Brenda Darling

Brenda Darling

VP Theatre Manager

Catherine Spence
Asst: Shelley Cahill
Melissa Chetty

Secretary

Catherine Spence
Asst: Shelley Cahill
Shelley Cahill Interim
Treasurer
Vacant

Program Committee Chair

Chantale Groulx

Chantale Groulx

Artistic Producer New Ideas
Festival

Carolyn Zapf

Carolyn Zapf

Technical Director

Vacant

Vacant

Director of Marketing and
Promotions

Gillian English

Chloe Whitehorn

Director Training & Development

Seema Lakhani

Ellen Green

Director of Audience
Development

Ramona Baillie

Ramona Baillie

Director New Play Development

Ramona Baillie

Ramona Baillie

Treasurer

—

Dahlia Katz

*This position is not elected but held by the most recent Past President.
Submitted by the Nominations Committee:

Barbara Larose, Chair; Ellen Green, Brenda Darling,
Catherine Spence and Seema Lakhani
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Report of the Nominations Committee

DEPARTMENT HEADS! TEAMS! OTHER POSITIONS
POSITION:

Incumbent

Membership Secretary

Nominee!s

Carol McLennan

Carol McLennan

PRODUCERS

Underpants: Jennifer McKinley,
FireWorks:
Molly Thom,
Dahlia Katz (& team)
Lady:
Ellen Green &
Barbara Larose
Rabbit Hole: Brenda Darling
Carolyn Zapf (Board)
Pat McCarthy
Jennifer Mckinley

Escape from Happiness: Vacant
Blood Relations: Vacant; Laurie
Williams Co-Producer for Auditions
Fireworks:
Dahlia Katz
I am Marguerite: Vacant

Artistic Producers, NIF

—

Volunteer Appreciation Committee

Vacant

ECommunications Editor

Vacant

Carolyn Zapf
Pat McCarthy
Jennifer Mckinley
June Rogers
Tabitha Keast, Sandy Schneider,
Ramona Baillie
Andrea Brown

Archivist

Catherine Spence

Catherine Spence

Wardrobe Manager

Bec Brownstone &
Barbara Blonska
Barbara Larose & Brenda Darling

Bec Brownstone
Barbara Larose & Brenda Darling

Razie Brownstone
Asst: Jennifer Oliver
Lyrme Patterson

Razie Brownstone
Tess Hendaoui
Lynrie Patterson & Vacant

Mary Wentz
Jennifer Oliver,
Razie Brownstone,
Lara Mrkoci (Chair)
Vacant
Back Up: Vacant
FOH Usher Aileen Smith
Susan Wilson & Andy Fraser

Razie Brownstone
Pat Hawk
Mary Wentz
Liz Best
Vacant
Back Ups: Martha Spence, Vacant

Equity Liaisons
Properties Manager
Subscriptions Manager/s
Front of House Managers (5)

—

Rentals Managers
Bar Managers
Bldg. Renewals Manager

Shelley Cahill &
Jo-Anne Wurster
Margaret Spence

Catering Committee for
Membership Meetings

Sandy Schneider & Catherine
Spence

Susan Wilson, & Andy Fraser & Rhona
Bennett
Shelley Cahill
Margaret Spence

Catering for Opening Night
Receptions
Reservations Management Team

Razie Brownstone, Barbara Haber,
Norma Crawford, Ros Sherrard
Victoria Shepherd, Chair
Mary Beam
Vacant (x3)

Building Space Scheduler

Barbara Larose

Catherine Spence and Sandy
Schneider will help to organize this
area
Volunteers will be recruited by the
show Producers.
Victoria Shepherd
Mairy Beam
Fiona Green
Sandra Burley (Blood Relations)
Barbara Larose

Digital Strategist

Sara Goldvine

Sara Goldvine

Blog & Social Media

Tina McCulloch

Tina McCulloch

Coordinator, Open Stage

Ray Kolbin

Janet Kish

,

